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‘Collecting starfish on the reef
 at Yarilena as a child’

Eleanor Coleman is a local artist, born and bred in 
Ceduna. Eleanor’s love for the sea comes out in many of 
her paintings. In this painting Eleanor tells the story of 
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Our Story
Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service (CKAHS) 
was established in 1986 to provide culturally 
appropriate and preventative health care, education 
programs and a clinical service to the Aboriginal 
community. In late 2006 the Minister of Health 
announced his intention to introduce a new Health 
Care Act which would provide for more direct control 
and accountability. The Minister acknowledged the 
need for CKAHS to be given the option to become 
Community Controlled. In June 2008, the Health 
Advisory Council (HAC) of CKAHS advised Country 
Health SA that they wished to work towards becoming 
community controlled with the transition date being 
the 1st July 2010. The HAC subsequently revised the 
timeframe with the transition date becoming the 1st 
July 2011.

CKAHS offi cially transitioned to the not for profi t 
Aboriginal Community Controlled Health sector on 1 
July 2011 and subsequently became Ceduna Koonibba 
Aboriginal Health Service Aboriginal Corporation.

Our Purpose
CKAHSAC aims to provide a unique, accountable, 
holistic and integrated service by providing best 
practice healthcare to the West Coast Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander communities, which enable 
individuals and their families to achieve improved 
health outcomes, and to participate in and enjoy 
community and culture. We aim to:

• Deliver and maintain respectful, safe and high 

quality holistic health care.

• Reduce the gap in Indigenous life expectancy by 

2031 through working closely with our Aboriginal 

and Torres Strait Islander communities, our key 

service delivery stakeholders and our funders.

• Work with and support the community to achieve 

improved health outcomes.

• Work with its communities to participate in and 

enjoy the community and culture.

CKASHAC is a major employer of Aboriginal people 
in the West Coast region that delivers programs 
from three sites; Clinic and Administration Building, 
Seaview Village and the Sobering Up Unit. Our main 
business is to provide a broad range of services to the 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities of 
Ceduna, Koonibba, Scotdesco and the surrounding 
Homelands.

Our Objectives
The constitutional objectives of CKAHSAC are to: 

Develop and provide a service which meets the health 
needs of local Aboriginal people in a culturally safe 
and respectful way, having regard to their total social, 
emotional and physical wellbeing, and the importance 
of health promotion and preventative measures. This 
includes:

• Integrating with and complementing existing service 

providers and agencies, to improve the social and 

emotional determinants of health.

• Providing a base for health units and other agencies 

providing services to the local community.

• Supporting safe environments that allow for the 

holistic delivery of health care to Aboriginal people.

• Support and educate local Aboriginal people to 

become informed of the options available to them for 

health and local community services.

• Develop and maintain relationships and partnerships 

to ensure coordinated and effective health services 

for local Aboriginal people.

• Develop and expand outreach services, special clinics 

and targeted programs where necessary.

• Support education andtraining of health professionals 

in Aboriginal health.

• Increase workplace opportunities and development 

opportunities for Aboriginal people.

• Research the needs of local Aboriginal people and 

evaluate new and existing services.

• Actively attempt to ensure the integration of 

Aboriginal health in mainstream sites, where this will 

be benefi cial to our clients.

• Provide health care and initiatives targeted at youth, 

elders and men in the local Aboriginal community.

• Take such other actions and initiatives as are 

deemed appropriate by the Board for the purposes of 

supporting and funding the other listed objects.

Our Shared Goals
The Strategic Directions plan 2016 – 2021 has been 
designed to share the same goal and build on the 
Australian Government’s commitment to ‘Closing the 
Gap’ by 2031. Their shared goal – Our shared goal is to:

‘Realise health equality by 2031, which is consistent with 
the Council of Australian Governments’ health goals for 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples. We know that 
good health enables Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
children to have the best possible start to life, and adults to 
lead active, full and productive lives’

Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service Aboriginal Corporation  (CKAHSAC)2



We will support the three priorities of improving school 
attendance, workforce participation and building safe 
communities, which are the key drivers in improving 
health outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander peoples.

‘We know that any work in these priority areas must be 
underpinned by improving the health and wellbeing of 
individuals, families and communities’

We will work with our Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander people, our key service delivery stakeholders 
and our funders. Together we will improve the lives of 
our people, we will realise our aspirations, and we will 
build the future for our next generation of leaders.

Our Shared Values
• We take pride in being community controlled for the 

people, and by the people.

• Culture and community is at the heart of everything 

we do and what we can’t do alone, we’ll do together.

• We are committed to services to improve the health 

of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Island people in our 

community.

• We will work together across the organisation as 

one team.

• We will be respectful and accepting of each other, 

our clients and community.

• We will always try to fi nd a solution to a problem 

even when it is “not my job”.

• There will be no “wrong door” for our clients – we 

will make sure that our clients see who they need 

to see.

• We will be a culturally safe organisation and learn 

together how to do this.

• We will work cooperatively with other services to 

benefi t our clients.

• We will work towards continuous quality 

improvement and meeting our accountability 

targets.

Our Future
Our vision is to provide an integrated health service 
that is free of racism and health inequalities for the 
West Coast Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
communities which enables individuals and their 
families to achieve enriched health outcomes that also 
addresses the social determinants of health.

There are four (4) key strategies that underpin the 
directions that will make a difference to the way we 
work as one organisation, the way we improve the 
delivery of services for Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander people, and translate the aspirations into 
reality. 

The milestones for the strategies to be implemented 
are identifi ed in the short term (12 months), medium 
term (2 years) and long term (3 – 5 years).

STRATEGIC DIRECTION 1       
Create One Organisation

To create ‘one organisation’ we all need to share the 
same vision. We need to be better at working with 
each other, knowing each others jobs and regularly 
talking with each other. We need to do the same with 
our key stakeholders, the services that help us work 
with our communities. We have to be professional in 
the way we look, the way we work together and the 
messages we are delivering to our communities. We 
have to make sure that we have the right skills in our 
workforce to meet our communities’ health and social 
and emotional wellbeing needs.

STRATEGIC DIRECTION 2 

Improve Our Service Delivery, Efficiency and Management

To empower management and staff to make the 
necessary day-to-day decisions within the overall 
directions set by the Board of Directors. We will 
improve our service delivery to the community. We will 
support and care for staff and develop a realistic and 
achievable workforce plan that promotes effi ciency, 
accountability, reliability and fosters creativity and 
innovation. 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION 3 

Improve the Infrastructure and Facilities

It is paramount to seek suitable infrastructure that 
supports the continuity of care to clients that allows 
their needs to be met and one that is conducive 
to bridging relationships between all teams. The 
design will have improved waiting areas including an 
outdoor area, and along with private counselling and 
working areas that create a sense of belonging and 
confi dentiality. This is priority for the organisation 
and we will pursue the funding to either seek a new 
building or completely fi x the existing one. 

STRATEGIC DIRECTION 4
Bring Our Aspirations to Life.

The Board and staff are committed to being an 
organisation that takes action. This plan will form the 
basis of what we do and not be placed on a shelf as a 
completed but not relevant document. We will monitor 
our progress and report regularly to the community.
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CKAHSAC Organisation Chart   
Snapshot at 30 June 2018 
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Meet the Directors 
The names of each person who have been a Director during the year and to the date of this report are: 
CHAIRPERSON:   Debra Miller   
DEPUTY CHAIRPERSON:   Leeroy Bilney  
SECRETARY:   Tracey Vincent (not pictured) and Alana Gunter (from Jan ‘18) 
TREASURER:   Robert Larking
DIRECTORS:   Alana Gunter, Margaret Binell and Kevina Ware
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:   Zell Dodd

Zell Dodd
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Chairperson’s Report 

Chairperson Report on behalf of CKAHSAC Directors

The Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service 

Aboriginal Corporation (CKAHSAC) Board of Directors 

hereby present the Annual Report for the 2017-2018 

fi nancial year.

CKAHSAC continue to work in collaboration with the 

Joint Venture to improve the quality, effi ciency and 

affordability of ICT services for the future.

Hello everyone, again this year has proved to be 

another big one. Some of the major updates for our 

2017/2018 Annual Report include the Enterprise 

Agreements for our Nurses and Employees. This is still 

a work in progress and we are looking forward to this 

being fi nalised. We have nearly fi nalised our Business 

Plan, and I am pleased to say that CKAHSAC now 

have our Workforce Plan, and a Communications and 

Marketing strategy. 

A major update that I would like to share with you 

has been our discussions around a new purpose built 

facility for CKAHSAC. In June 2017 we submitted an 

Expression of Interest to the Australian Government, 

Department of Health’s Major Capital Works 

Programme as the fi rst step; we expect to hear the 

outcome by mid August 2018. This would not have 

been possible without the support of Jawun (featured 

in our Annual Report), who have worked closely with 

us to develop our scoping documents. On behalf of 

the Board of Directors I would like to formally thank 

Kayrn Baylis, Chief Executive Offi cer and Shane 

Webster, State Director and their Major Sponsors for 

deploying Jawun secondi’s to spend fi ve weeks with 

us. We are very much looking forward to hearing the 

outcome of the Department of Health’s Major Capital 

Works Programme to help us build the facility we so 

urgently need, as the current building is simply not 

suitable, with all the ongoing repairs and maintenance 

(as mentioned in last years Annual Report), but more 

importantly the Buildings end of life is fast approaching 

which is 2020. CKAHSAC have worked closely with our 

Country Health SA Local Health Network colleagues to 

progress this. 

I am very excited to let you know that we have been 

successful in recruiting a permanent Doctor, who is 

currently working overseas, and at the moment we 

are fi nalising the immigration paperwork. We are 

anticipating the new Doctor and his family will land 

in Ceduna by the end of this year or early in the New 

Year. None of this would have been possible if we 

didn’t have a strong working relationship with the 

Rural Doctors Workforce Agency (RDWA), who has 

been instrumental in sourcing the talent, assisting 

with the recruitment process and then supporting us 

with the new immigration process; it has been a long 

and challenging journey for all of us. On behalf of the 

CKAHSAC Board of Directors and our key staff I would 

like to thank Lyn Poole, Chief Executive Offi cer, RDWA 

and her incredibly dedicated staff for their stamina in 

getting us to where we are now. 

CKAHSAC also have a strong working relationship with 

Aboriginal Health Council South Australia (AHCSA) 

where our Chairperson is a member on their Board. 

AHCSA is our key advocacy body and keep us abreast 

of any government and/or policy changes that are 

relevant to the Aboriginal Community Controlled 

Health sector in SA. AHCSA is also supported by the 

National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health 

Organisation and attends their CEO meetings. For 

CKAHSAC attending AHCSA Board meetings it is a 

good opportunity to touch base with the other Member 

services Chairpersons and their CEO’s to talk about 

any challenges and different ways of doing business in 

a unifi ed and safe environment. 

Finally as you are aware I was re-elected onto the 

CKAHSAC Board of Directors at the Annual General 

Meeting held on the 21 November 2017, for a term 

of three years, and then subsequently elected by 

the Board as the Chairperson. However there are a 

number of governance changes that have occurred that 

I would like to share with our Members, communities 

and key partners. At our Board meeting held on the 25 

June 2018 a motion was moved where I will offi cially 

step down as the Chairperson as of the 30 June 2018, 

but in saying this I will remain as a Director. Leeroy 

Bilney, Deputy Chairperson was elected and accepted 

the role as the Chairperson as of the 1 July 2018. 

I would like to take a moment to share with you my 

experiences during this time. I have seen CKAHSAC 

Board of Directors grow and become stronger in how 

CKAHSAC should operate and service our communities 

and Aboriginal people by developing good strategic 

and business plans and a workable Constitution that 

will lead CKAHSAC into the future. The employment 

of a strong, dedicated, supportive, professional Chief 

Executive Offi cer who wants to see CKAHSAC grow as 

much as the Directors. I would personally like to thank 

Zell Dodd for her commitment to CKAHSAC which has 

now been nearly three (3) years. Zell has offered to stay 

on a bit longer which gives CKAHSAC stability at the 

top level. I believe that CKAHSAC is heading in the right 

direction although it’s taken some time to happen, 

but it will be for the future of our services to the 

communities and the Aboriginal people we service on 

a daily basis. As you read through this Annual Report 

you can see how much work and dedication has gone 

into CKAHSAC over the past 12 months and I would 

like to thank everyone who has been a part of this, too 

many to mention individually but I will thank all the 

Directors who have committed their personal time to 

attend meetings and help make the right decisions for 

CKAHSAC and its future.

Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service Aboriginal Corporation  (CKAHSAC)6



CKAHSAC currently have a number of service 

agreements with the Australian Government 

Departments and State Government, these are listed 

below which shows how many Programs CKAHSAC 

have to administer

Our Future journey and aspirations

Each year the list gets longer as are so many 

individuals and organisations to thank, in particular 

our Funders, for without them we wouldn’t be able to 

provide the comprehensive services that we do, during 

my time as the Chairperson I would like to thank the 

following services:

• Ceduna District Health Service

• Other member agencies of the Ceduna Services 

Leadership Reform

• The SA Aboriginal Community Controlled Health 

services 

• Aboriginal Health Council SA 

• Rural Doctors Workforce Agency

• National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health 

Organisation 

• Country SA Local Health Network

• Country Health SA Primary Health Network

• SA Health

• Australian Government; Department of Health, and 

the Department of Prime Minister and Cabinet.

I would like to thank the Joint Venture ICT partners 

Pika Wiya and Nunyara Health Service and Dan Kyr, 

Network Operations Manager, who has always been a 

very strong supporter and advocate of us all. We have 

had many shared struggles with our out-dated ICT 

infrastructure, and Communicare with reporting on the 

national Key Performance Indicators and the Online 

Service Report. 

In closing, I would like to pay respect to the 

Members of CKAHSAC, for without our Members the 

organisation wouldn’t exist and I wouldn’t be in this 

position. Thank you all for your support and I look 

forward to continuing to work closely with you all as 

a Director now and hand over to Leeroy Bilney as the 

new Chairperson. Can we all put our hands together to 

welcome Leeroy as the Chairperson of CKAHSAC.

Debra Miller
Chairperson

CKAHSAC

Department Program

DPMC (CWLTH) SEWB, AOD

DoH (CWLTH) PHC, Social Health, ICT, Connected Beginnings & New Directions 

DoH (CWLTH) Flexible Aged Care 

DoH (CWLTH) Community Home Support Program

DoH (CWLTH) National Jobs Creation Package 

Country SA PHN ITC and Flexible Funds

DCSI (STATE) Gambling Program

DASSA Sobering Up Unit

SA Health Environmental Health Program

Well Women’s Screening

CHSALHN Trachoma and SUU 

RDWA 

2017/18 Funding Ratio 

• COMMONWEALTH  58%

• STATE  25%

• OTHER  17% 
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report  

I would like to acknowledge the Traditional Owners of 
the Land that I live and work on and pay deep respect 
to the Elders past, present and future. I similarly 
acknowledge and pay respect to the younger generation 
who are the future Leaders and advocates for their local 
communities. 

I am a descendant and belong to the Ngarrindjeri, 
Kaurna / Narungga ancestral groups. I come with over 
20 year of lived experience and expertise in the areas 
of Aged Care (Home and Community Care and fl exible 
residential Aged care), SA Health (service re-design, 
service delivery, policy and strategic planning, Mental 
Health and Drug & Alcohol in the government and non-
government sectors). 

I am very honoured to have been given the opportunity 
to stay on as the Chief Executive Offi cer in a more 
permanent capacity. I sincerely thank the Board of 
Directors for having confi dence in me, and for the many 
discussions we have had around improving our systems 
and services, and preparing for the implementation of 
the Department of Health’s funding model. 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank Debra 
Miller as the Chairperson for her leadership, her 
determination, resilience and courage. Deb was 
always transparent and honest and made me feel 
very welcomed to CKAHSAC, to her family and the 
community. Deb is a champion and a Leader for her 
community, and we are very fortunate that she remains 
on the Board as a Director. 

There have been important developments across many 
areas of CKAHSAC, particularly in the way we deliver 
services, and how the corporation has moved forward in 
creating ‘one organisation’.  I have outlined some of the 
major activities that have happened over the past twelve 
months. 

• Since the review of the clinic that was undertaken 

in 2016, CKAHSAC have been able to implement a 

number of improvements that include recruiting to 

vacant positions and undertaking solid planning in 

the construction of a client centred model of care 

that will bring all operational teams together. 

• The CKAHSAC Expression of Interest (EOI) developed 

and submitted to the Department of Health’s Major 

Capital Works program on the 20 June 2018, in a 

bid for a much needed new purpose built Facility. At 

the time of submitting the EOI, we were expecting to 

hear the outcome by mid August 2018. 

• The establishment of the Aboriginal Interagency 

Forum (AIF), which brought together key Aboriginal 

staff working in the local human services sector. 

The AIF key driver is to improve communication and 

empower Aboriginal people’s identity, culture and 

self worth. 

• We are still fi nalising the Employees and Nurses 

Enterprise Agreements, this is taking longer than 

expected, however it is important for CKAHSAC 

employees to be involved in the process. 

• CKAHSAC have been very fortunate to connect with 

‘Jawun’ who is a not for profi t organisation that aims 

to increase the capacity of Indigenous leaders and 

their team members. Jawun works side by side with 

organisations and communities to achieve their 

own development goals, by deploying secondi’s with 

specifi c project brief capabilities. You will be able 

to read more about Jawun itself and the secondi’s 

further on in the Annual Report. Our experience with 

Jawun has been outstanding, and the secondi’s have 

joined our family network. 

• There have been a number of training and education 

opportunities for staff, which are represented 

throughout the Annual Report. A major highlight 

for CKAHSAC was bringing on board two Aboriginal 

Health Worker trainees Karla McIlwraith and Bobby-

Ray Milne, who started their journeys into this much 

needed area of work last year. We are so proud that 

they have commenced this training and we very much 

look forward to their graduation in October 2018. 

I am pleased to say that the Honourable Ken Wyatt, 
Minister for Indigenous Health and Minister for Aged 
Care visit to Ceduna on the 21st February 2018 was a 
success. While the visit focused on the launch of the 
much needed Connected Beginnings program of which 
CKAHSAC were funded for last year, we also had the 
opportunity to raise other concerns such as Aged Care, 
Mental Health, Environmental Health and the state of 
our current Building. In attendance with Minister Wyatt 
was Senator Peter Treloar MP, Member for Flinders; 
Senator David Fawcett, MP, Senator for South Australia 
and Rowan Ramsey MP, Member for Grey.

We were very enthusiastic to host the Lowitja Institute 
Board and their Chief Executive Offi cer Romlie Mokak 
who arrived in Ceduna to hold their Board meeting here 
on the 14 & 15 June 2018. They had the opportunity 
to speak openly with staff and Board Directors about 
any issues and potential research projects. During 
their time here they also had the opportunity to visit 
Koonibba Aboriginal Community and spend time with 
Kevina Ware, Youth Coordinator and CKASHAC Board 
Director who was their chaperone. Thank you to Corey 
McLennan, CEO for allowing this to happen. You will 
read a message from Romlie Mokak, CEO further on in 
the Annual Report. 

We will continue to work closely with and acknowledge 
our Funders, the Aboriginal Health Council of South 
Australia and our Member Services at the CEO Forums, 
the National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health 
Organisation, Indigenous Allied Health Australia, Rural 
Doctors Workforce Agency, National Disability Insurance 
Agency, and in particular Ceduna District Health Service 
and the member services of the Ceduna Services 
Reform Leadership Group. CKAHSAC will also ensure 
the local Aboriginal Interagency Forum will realise its 
full potential over the next twelve months. 

Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service Aboriginal Corporation  (CKAHSAC)8



Zell Dodd
Chief Executive Offi cer

CKAHSAC

Details as at 30 June, 2018 

Snapshot of Statistics for 2017/18

These statistics have been prepared using the parameters for reporting to the department of health and are based on 

the AIHW current clients defi nition

On behalf of the Corporation, I would very much like 
to thank past and present staff members for their 
leadership, loyalty and commitment, for without you 
we not have been able to kick goals in areas of high 
need and demand. I would also like to thank every 
other individual for their support to CKAHSAC by 
means of helping us to get further funding for much 
needed programs, a permanent GP, fi xing our Building, 
and planning strategically for the overall health and 
wellbeing of our mutual individuals, families and 
communities. 

In closing I trust you will enjoy reading the 2017-
18 Annual report, and I would like to take this 
opportunity to wish you and your families a very Merry 
Christmas and a Happy & Safe New Year. 

The average number of  

times each regular client 

attended in 17-188
Client contacts - By site

Clinic

SUU

Outreach

Seaview

Koonibba

Scotdesco

40.33%

17.70%

17.44%

14.27%

9.81%

0.45%

Episodes of care 

provided to regular 

clients in 17-1819,754

Client Contacts

34,705

of the episodes of care 

provided to male 

clients were Aboriginal   

85%
of the episodes of care 

provided to female 

clients were Aboriginal   

88%
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Lowitja Institute Visit
Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service

It was a great pleasure for the Lowitja Institute Board 
and myself to visit in June the Ceduna Koonibba 
Aboriginal Health Service (CKAHS) and we thank their 
Board, CEO Ms Zell Dodd and staff for their generous 
hospitality.

During our visit, we learned about the long and proud 
history of CKAHS and the critical role the service plays 
in the lives of Aboriginal people in town and beyond. 
Through our visit to Koonibba Community, we also 
learned about the painful history and refl ected on the 
long term trauma caused by the removal of children 
and separation of families. Through all of this the 
strength of its people was more than evident. 

The clarity of purpose by the CKAHS Board and its 
young, vibrant and future thinkers, supported by the 
experienced CKAHS leadership team is inspiring That 
purpose is beyond health services and the current 
challenges, towards an empowerment agenda to 
ensure Aboriginal people control their futures.

Part of that agenda is a strong commitment for 
research to support CKAHS priorities and to take a 
data, knowledge and systems approach to deliver the 
best services for their people. 

For the institute, it was important to listen and think 
about how we can assist in this empowerment agenda; 
we will work with CKAHS to fi nd ways to support the 
service to realise their research plans.

This visit is part of the Lowitja Institute Board 
commitment to hold some of our meetings in regional 
areas. 

While we are connected nationally, and to local 
communities and families through the research, it is 
also important for us to connect directly with people 
living and working in communities. Not only do we 
learn how to support services, but it is profoundly 
uplifting for us, as an organisation and as individuals, 
to spend time with communities. This is completely 
aligned with what our Patron, Dr Lowitja O’Donoghue, 
wants us to do.

Romlie Mokak
Chief Executive Offi cer
The Lowitja Institute

Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service Aboriginal Corporation  (CKAHSAC)10



Jawun is a not for profi t organisation that increases 

the capacity of Indigenous leaders, organisations and 

communities to achieve their own development goals. 

This in turn leads to lasting, material and measurable 

improvements in the lives of Indigenous people in 

those communities.

The Jawun model consists of four key components. 

These components not only make Jawun effective 

in achieving progress for Indigenous communities, 

they also make it unique when compared to other 

development organisations around the world.

• An emphasis on Indigenous-led organisations and 

initiatives

• A local or ‘place-based’ focus

• Partnerships across different sectors

• Programs which utilise the unique skills of our 

partners

CKAHSAC + Jawun Projects:

Project Jawun Partner Outcomes To Date

IT Systems Advisory Telstra • Analysis and mapping of IT systems to result in more effi cient 

and cost effective services

West Coast Aboriginal 
Wellbeing Centre

Woodside

Australian Public Sector

• Business Case Developed

• Initial Concept Design Completed

• Scoping Study Initiated 

Executive Advisory Australian Public Sector • Executive Support and Coaching

• Development of a Change Management program

• Further development of CKAHSAC Business Plan

• Organisational Health Check undertaken

Far West Coast Atlas Qantas • Analysis and mapping of Human Resource systems to result 

in more effi cient and cost effective services

• Initiation of Happy HR program

   

Jawun commenced operations at the Far West Coast 

in August 2017. To lay the foundation for a strategic 

partnership, secondi’s have mapped key data, services, 

systems and relationships in the region. Support 

for the region has been spread across economic 

development, community health and safety initiatives. 

CKAHSAC is a founding partner in the FWC region.

Key corporate and government partners which have 

supported the FWC region with skilled secondi’s 

include:

• Qantas

• Telstra

• Woodside

• Australian Government (APS)

• Bendigo Adelaide Bank; and

• The Westpac Group

For the 2017-2018 fi nancial year, 19 six-

week secondi’s supported the Far West Coast region. 

Six of these secondi’s were based at CKAHSAC 

equating to an in kind contribution of $141,000 from 

corporate and government Australia.

“CKAHSAC has a wonderful depth of leadership united in 

their commitment to invest in their people, systems and infrastructure 

to drive innovation and deliver the best results for their community.”

Shane Webster
Regional Director South Australia, Jawun

Jawun is a not for profi t organisation that increases 
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Once upon a time, there was a young man named Shane 
A Jawun whisperer and emissary, across the wide SA plain 
Shane’s heart and soul passion, was to help the SA fi rst-here 
To slowly build connections, bring our shared history more near 
Shane straddled the fault-line, between fi rst-here and second 
Working on both sides, he would cajole and would beckon 
To gain interest and trust, for the fi rst-here to say 
In Jawun we place faith, with your team we will play 
In the Far West Coast lands, Shane beseeched CAC King Wayne 
And courted Queen Zell, of the Healers of Pain 
I’ll bring you fi ve servants, your bidding to do 
Each brings a potent magic, to salve what ails you 

With King Wayne and Queen Zell, now of the same mind 
Shane had to now scramble, fi ve servants to fi nd? 
Across the wide nation, and the second-here fi efdoms 
He trawled and he searched, till across these he did come     
Fair Tina from Sydney, maiden of air and of yacht 
Shane liked her HR magic, but had Tina forgot? 
With Irena from cold Canberra, team member two was fi lled 
Military discipline with stats, a Far West Coast atlas to build 
From national tin-can and string, by chance both next two were found 
Jarnail expert with gold coin, Tim papyrus abacus bound 
The last team member’s magic, very strong needed to be 
Jill from We Dock Your Pay Sydney, a perfect choice we would see 

From all points of the compass, travelled the servants by fi ve 
At Glenelg with the LRM crew, they entered Jawun’s hive 
For the fi rst time they met, a group of strangers at tea 
Perhaps not then knowing, Jawun family they will be 
From Country-side usury, Elise came running and with fl air 
Amanda the water diviner, plants and animals did care 
Sarah from Nottingham Sheriff, amazing weaving skills and know 
Steven heart soul displayed, Dan quiet-smart go-with-fl ow 
Next day Shane and ten, to Ngarrindjeri nation did go 
Our shared stories and history, wise leaders would show 
Eyes were fi rst opened, with the nation map of fi rst-here 
A land fully occupied, it was perfectly clear

Yet six generations ago, second-here did arrive 
And claimed the land “empty”, a new place they could thrive 
They introduced their diseases, guess unintentionally so 
Still it devastated the fi rst-here, no-where else for to go 
The fi rst-here had occupied, 60,000 years or more 
In harmony with their lands, they had ancient culture and lore 
Their tradition was clear, don’t be greedy where few 
Don’t take more than you need, respect all around you too 
But more second-here came, across lands did spread and grow 
To fi rst-here wisdom and knowledge, they were blind ‘cause we know 
They thought they brought clever, and civilising ideas 
Yet missed the ancient and beautiful, built from thousands of years 

The second-here ignorance, superiority on display 
Led to frustration and anger, on both sides one could say 
The second-here started, to push fi rst-here aside 
And all over the land, spot massacres did arrive 
Some religious second-here, concerned fi rst-here may end 
Built up local missions, to protect and be-friend 
While intentions were good, second-class fi rst-here did stay 
Restricted to missions, to rations and to pray 
Three generations hence, second-here declared national white-place 
Amongst animals and plants, the fi rst-here people were placed 
Yet to fi ght foreign white wars, they were still allowed to go 
Then left in those countries, nor veteran’s jobs could they sow 

To move off the mission, “exemption” tokens they did need 
Right up to a generation ago, a referendum fi nally freed 
Seeming blessing at fi rst, a noose it did come to be 
Dependency and addiction, sadly released and set free 

Then visionary fi rst-here leaders, in recent times realised 
Responsibility and empowerment, they needed to take on to rise 
The Jawun initiative, on Cape York it fi rst grew 
A drop in the ocean perhaps, eventual ocean hope to brew 
So then to Far West Coast, Jawun fi ve travelled and fl ew 
To lands of Wirangu, Mirning, Gugada/Kokatha too 
First introduction, to town late at night 
The local Vikings tavern, they all went for a bite 

On second day there, the fi ve made a great call 
To the gladiatorial contests, local foot and net ball 
There they saw “Young Waynie”, lead the Roosters to win 
Then a sight to become familiar, King Wayne with huge grin 
Finally off to their workplaces, the fi ve servants did arrive 
To King Wayne and Queen Zell, formal presented, high fi ve! 
Irena, Jill and Jarnail, to the CAC castle they went 
And on loan to the Healers, Tim and Tina were lent 
At the Healers Jawun two, the Matriarchy did meet 
Their new co-worker “family”, amongst who they would seat 
Jessie natural leader, so knowledgeable, so calm 
Shelly Jill-of-all-trades, including re-potting a palm 

Alicia high quality, with a laugh so appealing 
Kelly on wages, in a private room no revealing 
Sandra counted the coins, but also oysters did farm 
Leanne counted the workers, too kept them from harm 
At the Healers front moat, sat Sonya and Irene 
They would check where you’re going, and where you had been 
The High Priestess of Healers, was a Tina (M) as well 
Behind mild gruff mask, vast heart deep wisdom did dwell 
Other healers the servants, as time by did meet 
Melissa and Simone, Kingsley out on the beat 
Patrick wiz of the kitchen, with slice and smile ready 
Caitlyn and Shoshanna, with Amy numbers kept steady

Tammy would drop by, from aged care with sea view 
Denise back from retired, now ran programs through 
Ken managed the place, “We Care Overnight” 
And Judith joined Kelly, tucked in room out of sight 
And of course Queen Zell too, always smiling always fair 
Inner spirit so strong, outer heart, passion and care 
Though Queen Zell ruled benignly, a tight ship she ran true 
And her right hand-maiden Jessi, always knew what best to do 
At the CAC kingdom castle, three met new “family” too 
Samara from the red Alice, so helpful and true 
Then Barry a fi erce warrior, to the ancients he yearned 
From he and wise Aunt Ruby, many home truths three learned 

CAC’s handsome young leader, King Wayne leading the charge 
His community his passion, to serve them he’d go far 
A natural born leader, his grandpa did see and mentor 
Yet a man of his own mind, own vision to forge 
King Wayne it was who, great hospitality he gave 
To Far West Coast treasures, a Jawun path he did pave 
From Davenport Creek, over sand and through dunes 
To Shelly Beach lodgings, for occasional night tunes
In King Wayne’s troop-carriage, to Mirning dreaming Jawuns travelled 
Towering cliffs, clear blue oceans, whale’s play that they marvelled 
And King Wayne once again, his chariot generously gave 
So Gawler peace and red beauty, they could hear, see and rave 

The Jawun fi ve servants, what a privilege they received 
To be welcome open-armed, to inner sanctums with creed 
At CAC, Healers and Forum, the people’s boards young and old 
With Jawun long introductions, the servant’s stories were told 
Then out to Koonibba, ex-mission now local-led 
With strong and compassionate, proud Corey their head 
Corey fi ghting on scrappings, to raise up the community 
Child care, new hall kitchen, kids to school a constant plea 

Far West Coast Jawun Dreaming
This story is a work of fiction. Any resemblance to actual people, places, events that you may know or have heard of is entirely happenstance and fortuitous. 
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Day and night it was clear, Corey committed to the cause 
But lined-up against him, ideas so full of fl aws 
Blindness to culture destruction, stolen lands, soul destroyed 
Then offering a pittance, why have no fi rst-here rejoiced?!? 

At Maralinga Tjaruta castle, met Lady Sharon, her Hand Vaughn 
A small sense of immense remoteness, struggles, challenges, life torn 
Anangu of Maralinga, second-here betrayed with a mace 
Setting perpetual fi re to their lands, their connection, sense of place
First moved to Yalata station, in a far distant foreign land 
Pitjantjatjara Anangu, desert heritage ripped from their hand 
Today Headmistress Desley, police care with barbecue 
Nauru and isle Manus, perhaps are not so new? 
At Scotdesco homeland station, a bright light to see 
King Bobby host gracious, great story, morning tea 
Great style so smart leader, working both sides of the street 
With progress and opportunities, his clan Bobby did replete 

In mid-Jawun term, fi nal grand tournament was due 
In net Blue Jess and Mel, rivalled Tiger Kelly, Alicia too 
In foot Wayne’s Koonibba army, West Tiges United did fear 
In each case the winners, bragging rights whole next year! 
Jawun as new spectators, some cheering they did learn 
“Go Wayne the Warhorse”, “Rooooo-sterrrrrs” got a turn 
Tiger sisters netball champs, Red White bros last football say 
Very quiet next back at work, assume a public holiday? 
Perspective now stretched broader, fi ve Jawun slaved away 
For their hosts they were keen, something useful to say 
Jarnail with smart treasury, advice he did give 
Tina found Happy People, a just work culture to live

Tim with magic whiteboard, proposed Gee! Drive to replace 
Irena talked all far and wide, what fi rst-here specifi c did face? 
From the dark side over, Jill the other side did move 
Tracking NGO money trails, critiquing CDP boot and hoove 
While some small steps forward, Jawuns hoped to provide 
An awareness woken too, down tilted fi eld fi rst-here slide 
Second-here walk directly, to starting line to play 
First-here a Kokoda Trail, must overcome so they may 
Getting to the race start, equality it still does not buy 
First-here further barriers, are stacked up on high 
Put-up with put-downs, foreign language culture to learn 
Can’t own own land or a job, how then can you earn? 

With last few days pending, Jarnail, Jill and Irena 
Came to visit friend Tim and, maiden Tina to see her 
A surprise banquet, they were delighted to fi nd 
With gifts for all fi ve, which was special and kind 
Finally a culmination, effort fi ve weeks not for nought? 
Proclaim Jawun Far West learnings, to King, Queen and to Court 
Prince Nick from Jawun Head, fl ew in for the affair 
Providing morale support and…guitar play, voice clear!
Irena spoke acknowledgement, to country welcome received 
Traditional owners’ custodians, of lands loved and grieved 
Social fi rst-here cartography, Irena outlined all new data 
Court responded obliquely, with a few old tomatoes? 

Do-gooders, “we know better”, groups Jill did delineate 
Fierce Barry’s response blunt, robber barons they are mate! 
Jarnail with great anecdote, brown seeds swept with a Broome 
Tina Tim rounded out, stretch break cleared the room? 
With Court back in session, Shane called time run short 
CDP distilled to pure essence, succinct Jill did retort 
Their fi nal heart refl ections, each Jawun had to trace 
Our new Far West “family”, we love, thank, embrace 
Then in full refl ection, a truth did crystallise 
Queen Zell and King Wayne, their titles may comprise 
In fact both humble servants, to their beloved community 
Bleed heart, soul, spirit daily, till fi rst-here be free 

With mist cleared from eyes, so obvious now to know 
It was Jawun fi ve that were feted, like Queens and Kings so 
So last day has come, in the kingdom to play 
Tomorrow a magic memory, is what will we say
Farewell Far West nation, our honour privilege to be 
Eternally connected, together shared our-story 
As now Jawun fi ve waken, home ground under their feet 
Nukkan ya, Nukkan ya, Nukkan till next dream we meet
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Staff Biographies 

Jessie Sleep
POSITION: 
Principal Development Offi cer

LENGTH OF TIME AT CKAHSAC:  
Commenced in 2006

PREVIOUS WORK EXPERIENCE:

• Administration

• Health Promotion and Education

• Quality Risk and Safety

• Program Management

• Human Resource Management

• Corporate Service Management

• Strategy and Business Development

• Project Management

• Capacity and Capability Building

• Data analysis and mapping

AREAS OF EXPERTISE: 
I have extensive knowledge of quality risk and 
safety programs, particularly in the areas of system 
development and analysis. This has been further 
developed to include strategic and business development 
and planning, including system and program analysis. 
Throughout my professional career I have spent a lot of 
time upskilling in the areas of program development and 
management to support and provide service delivery to 
the Aboriginal Community. 

Warren Miller 
POSITION: 
Community Health Coordinator 

LENGTH OF TIME AT CKAHSAC:  
Commenced in January 2018

PREVIOUS WORK EXPERIENCE:

• Program Coordinator Ceduna Stepping Stones Drug 

and Alcohol Day Centre (ADAC) 

• Aboriginal Community Consultant/Business 

Development TAFE  SA/AAC

• Team Manager Harm Minimisation Team Nunkuwarrin 

Yunti

• Senior Project Offi cer Housing SA - Aboriginal 

Programs

• Project Offi cer Makin Tracks (ADAC)

• Coordinator Aboriginal Men’s Sexual Health Educator 

Shine SA

• Male Health Worker CKAHSAC

• Ranger National Parks and Wildlife Ceduna

AREAS OF EXPERTISE: 

• Primary Health Care principles and applying to work

• Advocacy

• Drug and Alcohol

• Sexual and Primary Health

• Conservation and Park Management

• Project Management

• Communication

• Report Preparation

• Data Research Reports

• Strategic Thinking

• Professional Presentations 

• Community Engagement 
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Warren Miller Bio continued 

PERSONAL INFORMATION: 

I am a Wirangu and Kokatha man from Ceduna. 

During my working career I was a leading fi gure in 

advocating for the health, wellbeing and education 

of Aboriginal People.  Previously being a member of 

the South Australian Aboriginal Advisory Committee 

(SAAAC) to the Minister, which assisted in developing 

policy that highlights various issues impacting on the 

needs of Aboriginal communities locally and regionally 

in South Australia. 

I have extensive experience in remote and regional 

communities in prevention and clinical management 

approaches in drug and alcohol. Along my travels I 

have completed my Masters and Graduate Diploma in 

Indigenous Health (Substance Use) from the University 

Of Sydney, School Of Medicine, Aboriginal Primary 

Health Care Cert 3&4 and various Management and 

Leadership qualifi cations. 

With the skills and experience I have gained through 

my work and tertiary studies, it has enabled me to 

become an author and senior editor of a handbook 

for Aboriginal Alcohol and Drug work. Along with 

presentations on the Professional Development of 

Indigenous Health Workers: Building capacity to 

address substance misuse in Aboriginal and Torres 

Strait peoples through university education. This 

also has enabled me to act as a link between the 

Aboriginal community, Government Departments and 

Educational Departments.

I enjoy being back home in Ceduna, fi shing, Hunting, 

Camping and just spending quality time with family.

Alicia Warmington 
POSITION: 
Quality Improvement and Accreditation Offi cer

LENGTH OF TIME AT CKAHSAC:  
Commenced in January 2012

PREVIOUS WORK EXPERIENCE:

• Health and Wellbeing

• Hospitality

AREAS OF EXPERTISE: 

• WH&S, 

• Quality and Accreditation Systems and Processes, 

• Auditing, 

• Document Development.

PERSONAL INFORMATION: 
Born in Ceduna, married with one daughter and another 
bub on the way.  
Love the beach, cooking and creating
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Staff Biographies 

Kingsley Ware
POSITION: 

Social Emotional Wellbeing Worker

LENGTH OF TIME AT CKAHSAC:  

Commenced May 2017

PREVIOUS WORK EXPERIENCE:

• Plant Operator with Skilled Group

• Storeman in Air Conditioning Store

• Metallurgist Assistant with Iluka Resources

• Far West Sports Academy Coordinator with Ceduna 

Aboriginal Corporation

PERSONAL INFORMATION: 

My child hood was spent growing up on the West Coast, 
moving between Yalata and Port Lincoln, and places in 
between.

I moved to Adelaide when I was 18 where I completed 
a Government Traineeship and then worked between 
Adelaide and Whyalla for approximately 10 years. My 
partner Renee and I then returned to Ceduna, where we 
have settled with our 5 daughters. 

I am currently working at CKAHSAC and studying at 
Aboriginal Health Council SA (AHCSA) for Cert IV in 
Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander Primary Health 
Care Practice. 

Lawrence Benbolt
POSITION: 

Community Home Support Program (CHSP)-Client Case 
Worker 

LENGTH OF TIME AT CKAHSAC:  

Commenced in May 2017

PREVIOUS WORK EXPERIENCE:

• Life Without Barriers-Client Care Worker  

• Air Diffusion ((Store Person) 

• Ceduna Aboriginal Corporation/AWNRM (Labour Hire) 

• Work Experience-Vorstenbosch & Sons Builders

• (General Labour) 

PERSONAL INFORMATION: 

I was born in Adelaide, however lived most of my life here 
in Ceduna. My family are from Maralinga, Koonibba and 
Ceduna areas.  I have two sons that I’m proud to have in 
my life.

In 2015 I moved to Adelaide to play football for Port 
Adelaide Magpies and provide myself with better 
opportunities. Unfortunately this didn’t work out for me 
and I moved back to live in Ceduna. 

I now work here at CKAHSAC in the Community Home 
Support Program (CHSP) along with doing my Certifi cate 
IV in Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander Primary 
Health Care Practice.        
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Renee Colbung 
POSITION: 

Community Home Support Program Worker (CHSP)

 

LENGTH OF TIME AT CKAHSAC:  

Commenced January 2017

PREVIOUS WORK EXPERIENCE:

• SSO Worker – Ceduna Area School

• Club Manager – Far West Aboriginal Sporting 
Complex, CAC

• Wellbeing Administration Offi cer – Watto Purunno 
Aboriginal Health Service

• Trainee – Offi ce of Recreation and Sport 

AREAS OF EXPERTISE: 

I have gained my Cert III in Aboriginal Primary 
Health Care with AHCSA, completed my certifi cate in 
Government and Business Services and at the moment I 
am in the process of deciding what I would like to be when 
I grow up!!

I have had great role models throughout my thirty years of 
living, it has been a blessing to learn from them to be able 
to help with every day issues that may occur within this 
role, learning each day as it comes.

PERSONAL INFORMATION: 

I was born in Ceduna Hospital; I am a young Aboriginal 
woman who takes pride in role modelling my attitude to 
refl ect my culture, strong and proud.  

I am a mother of fi ve young girls who are Aimee, 
Kaianne, Kailee, Marcina, & Mary.

My partner is Kingsley Ware and we are both 
determined to be strong role models for our children.

My interest is keeping active by playing netball and 
tennis and other sports that allow me to gain my 
personal achievements and I like to make a good 
refl ection to my kids to for the future. I also love to sit 
around the fi re with family. 

I would really like to travel the world to see what is out 
there and learn other cultures all around the world.
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Pictured: Member for Flinders Peter Treloar, Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service CEO Zell Dodd, 

Indigenous Health Minister Ken Wyatt, Senator for South Australia David Fawcett and Federal Member for Grey 

Rowan Ramsey at the offi cial launch on Wednesday. (Courtesy of Luca Cetta)

Highlights and Achievements
Indigenous Leadership Training

Jessie Sleep and Tina Miller undertook training in 
a Certifi cate IV in Indigenous Leadership during the 
later half of the 2017/2018 Financial Year. Both Jess 
and Tina have been able to build on their leadership 
qualities and put into place a number of practices to 
benefi t the staff and community. One of the highlights 
of the training, apart from the skills development 
and relationship building with a wonderful group of 
Aboriginal peers, was the opportunity to meet Steven 
Oliver at the graduation ceremony. 

Ministers Visit 

On February the 21st, 2018 CKAHSAC were honoured 

with a visit from the Indigenous Health Minister, 

Ken Wyatt, along  with other local Ministers. The 

visitors were given a tour of the building and had the 

opportunity to meet with staff and Board Members. 

The ‘Connected Beginnings’ program was offi cially 

launched by Indigenous Health Minister Ken Wyatt 

[today at the Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health 

Service (CKAHS)], as part of a national rollout, where it 

has been helping to build better, stronger lives.
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Pictured: Renee Colbung proudly running with the Commonwealth Games Baton, in Coffi n Bay in the lead up to the 

games. (Courtesy of the West Coast Sentinel)

Renee’s Baton Relay  

Ms Colbung said it was an honour to be 
involved

“It was a really big privilege to be part of it 

– it is something I’ve never known anybody 

to have done before,” she said.  “This was 

something I can probably pass down to the 

family, something that can be told about my 

life”.

Ms Colbung said the highlights of the day 

were having her children there to see her 

carry the baton, and meeting with the 

other runners and listening to why they 

were nominated.

Highlights and Achievements
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In 2016-17 TTANGO2 introduced Point of Care Testing 
for Chlamydia, Gonorrhoea & recently Trichomonas 
into two of the Aboriginal Health Council of South 
Australia Ltd. (AHCSA) member services Umoona 
Tjutagku Health Service, Coober Pedy and Ceduna 
Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service (CKAHS) based in 
Ceduna.

AHCSA’s Sexual Health Program (SHP) aims to build 
capacity within Aboriginal Community Controlled 
Health Services (ACCHS) in South Australia for the 
improvement of sexual health services through:

• Community Engagement with young People ( Health 

Promotion Grants are offered to member services 

to encourage young people to participate in STI 

screening)

• Developing Clinical capacity to address the issues 

of sexually transmissible infections & blood borne 

viruses within the SA Aboriginal community. 

This approach to STI control (based on a program 
that was introduced into the APY lands by Nganampa 
Health) involves a combination of routine opportunistic 
STI screening of patients in an at-risk age (16-35yrs) 
and an annual intensive STI screening program aimed 
at testing and treating the eligible population at once. 

The SHP Team members work closely with Aboriginal 
Health Workers and practitioners as well as nurses 
within  AHCSA member services to improve the uptake 
of STI screening both in preparation for the annual 
intensive screening period, and throughout the year.

During the 6 week annual STI screening period 
which ran from 21st May until 29th June 2018, with the 
assistance of AHCSA’s “Community Sexual Health 
Promotion Small Grant”, CKAHS decided to run a raffl e 
for young (16- 35yrs) Aboriginal community members 
in Ceduna.

Staff from CKAHS focussed on promoting screening 
for STIs & blood borne viruses with the aim of also 
raising awareness about point of care testing and safer 
sex health education with young people.  Raffl e tickets 
were given to those who chose to participate in STI 
Screening. The raffl e tickets then went in the draw at 
the end of June for prizes which included Smart TVs, 
Mobile Phones and Foodland Vouchers.

Pictured: Con Miller and Sonearae Bilney with 
TTANGO2 GeneXpert in POCT Room at Ceduna 
Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service

Health Check and STI Check Success

CKAHS and AHCSA’s Sexual Health Program have 
noticed the raffl e alongside an intense period of 
promotion, staff education and community health 
promotion has increased the numbers of young 
people participating in STI screening and Point of Care 
Testing in Ceduna. This will hopefully have a sustained 
positive effect on controlling the spread of STIs and 
the promotion of safer sexual health practices beyond 
the annual 6 week STI screening period and increased 
uptake of “test, treat and go” that being a part 
TTANGO2 research offers.

Highlights and Achievements
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Details as at 30 June, 2018 

Snapshot of Statistics for 2017/18

These statistics have been prepared using the parameters for reporting to the department of health are based on 

the AIHW current clients defi nition

AGE 

85Y+

80-84Y

75-79Y

70-74Y

65-69Y

60-64Y

55-59Y

50-54Y

45-49Y

40-44Y

35-39Y

30-34Y

25-29Y

20-24Y

15-19Y

10-14Y

5-9Y

0-4Y

TOTAL

MALE 

0

1

2

6

21

32

44

40

59

51

44

73

86

43

48

57

76

78

761

FEMALE 

3

3

6

8

12

33

44

55

48

45

60

89

81

62

44

73

97

82 

845

% of individual clients - By gender

44%
56%

Clients - By Aboriginality

•   ABORIGINAL  86.08% 

•   NON-ABORIGINAL  13.26%

•   NOT RECORDED  0.64% 

Client contacts - By age
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Details as at 30 June, 2018 

Snapshot of Statistics for 2017/18

Preventative Health Measures

Cervical Screening (in past 2 years) 

Immunised against infl uenza (50+)

CVD Risk Assessment

MBS Health Check (25+)

Alcohol consumption recorded

Smoking Status recorded

  Very Remote       SA       National        CKAHSAC

43%
34%
36%
33%

17%

52%
45%
47%
54%

39%
42%
50%
44%

52%
61%
63%
60%

66%
81%
81%
87%

Chronic Disease Management

Immunised against infl uenza
(type 2 diabetes)

Kidney Function test (CVD)

Kidney Function test 
(type 2 diabetes)

HbA1c recorded
(less than 6 months)

Blood Pressure recorded

MBS Team Care Arrangement

MBS GP Management Plan

43%
37%
36%
21%

62%
55%
58%
67%

63%
63%
63%
70%

49%
50%
48%
58%

48%
48%
53%
64%

63%
66%
64%
75%

51%
50%
55%
63%

  Very Remote       SA       National        CKAHSAC
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The teams within the clinic are:

• Chronic Disease 

• Community Health 

• Women’s and Child Health 

• Clinic Administration 

• Clinical

Each team coordinator has submitted individual team 
reports to capture their year and our future directions.

Clinic Team Report    

Clinic Coordinator/Registered Nurse:

Tina Miller

As the Clinical Coordinator I am responsible for the 
daily running of the Clinic, coordination of services and 
executive reporting as per funding service agreements.  

Due to the workload of the position the clinic has 
implemented Coordinators who are responsible for 
individual teams; this has reduced my workload 
dramatically.

Client contacts - By site

PI01: Birth weight

PI05: HbA1c

PI09: Smoking status

PI16: Alcohol consumption

PI23: Blood pressure

24%
76%

65%
57%

87%
79%

60%
61%

75%
60%
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Highlights for the year 

CKAHSAC Clinic team has a full compliment of staff 
and all positions have been fi lled.

A Draft Model of Care has been completed and made 
available for staff comments; this will be then collated 
and professionally designed.

Aboriginal Health Council South Australia (AHCSA) 
continue to assist in areas of upskilling the staff, 
especially in Communicare training around setting 
up appropriate Medicare items that capture National 
Key Performance Indicators to make reporting to the 
Department of Health easier. 

CKAHSAC were successful in obtaining a TTANGO 
Machine, which allows clinic staff to test for and treat 
Sexually Transmitted Infections within 90 minutes. 
We have re-introduced and recruited a Sexual Health 
Project Offi cer which has shown a noticeable increase 
in these screenings being conducted in the clinic. 

A new vaccine fridge has been purchased as the 
previous fridge was too big and with the regular power 
outages has caused several Cold Chain breeches where 
immunisations had to be discarded. With a smaller 
fridge and our generator being hard wired to the 
building this has reduced any further breeches.

We have two Registered Nurses who have completed 
their immunisation provider course through S.A. Health, 
and the Immunisation program has re-commenced.

Future Directions 

CKAHSAC are looking at increasing Koonibba Clinic 
times to a full day instead of the current half day and 
re-commencing Scotdesco Clinics more frequently.   
Both clinics will be equipped with all necessary medical 
equipment as we have been fortunate enough to receive 
a medical equipment grant to stock these clinics.
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Community Engagement Team

Lincoln Dudley (Male Outreach Health Worker) & 
Sonearae Bilney (Female Outreach Health Worker) 

• Lincoln and Sonearae (AHW) are responsible for 

promoting improvement of health within the local 

community and surrounding areas by using primary 

health care principles and goals. 

• The Outreach workers provide community members 

and clients a range of health care services to 

improve community education, understanding and 

knowledge of primary health care issues.

Con Miller (Sexual Health Project Offi cer). 

• The Sexual Health Project Offi cer is responsible 

for promotion opportunities by engaging early 

with the community and surrounding areas for 

early detection and prevention of sexual health 

infections.  Con has commenced his Certifi cate IV 

in Primary Health with AHCSA and has commenced 

screening under supervision, specifi cally targeting 

Sexual Health screening.

Highlights for the year  

The Aboriginal Health Workers have been extremely 
busy this year with promoting and delivering 
improvement of health within the community and 
surrounding areas, using primary health care 
principles and putting them into practice. 

The team has been instrumental in developing 
resources and assisting visiting specialists. They have 
maintained a high level of community awareness in 
improving community education and understanding 
and knowledge of health and wellbeing issues and 
solutions.

Due to consultation and evaluation process, the 
Koonibba clinic has increased from a half day to a full 
day (once a week on Tuesdays), which has resulted in 
increased client attendance completing health checks, 
care plans and Immunisations.

Community Engagement Team completed 
approximately 75 STI sexual healths screening with in 
the community (this included urine and bloods taken) 
prizes were offered through a “raffl e” and  many 
community members within the targeted age group 
participated.

Future Directions 

• The team has followed up on actions from previous 

recommendations regarding CKAHSAC future 

directions.

• Monthly data clean out of Communicare and up-

dating demographics.

• Ensuring that Community Health Checks are 

regular and increasing with a  client centred care 

approach.

• Staff development and training in relevant areas. 

• Ongoing training requirements for clinical staff 

LOGIQC, nKPI’s and the relevant need for accurate 

documentation and CKAHSAC patient recall system 

with staff trained. 

• Re-commence Scotdesco monthly clinics.

Child Health Team:

Child Health Coordinator - Natrina Dunn

Reuel Mundy

Karla McIlwraith

Heather Abinett

The Child Health Team comprises a team of Health 
Practitioners, a Trainee Health worker and a 
Registered Nurse. Our role is to work with families 
within Ceduna and surrounding areas. Our main focus 
is working with Mothers and Children, focussing on 
better health outcomes for families.

We work in calibration with other service providers 
to capture our client’s needs, this includes keeping 
tracking of our client’s immunisation records. Along 
with assisting parents with booking and maintaining 
other Allied Health appointments.

We work closely with the Birthing program at Ceduna 
District Hospital, completing monthly follow ups and 
taking over the 6-week post clients and offering them 
our services.

The Child Health Team work closely with the Children’s 
Centre and Child Care Centres to offer weekly health 
promotion and education sessions that are benefi cial 
to our up and coming future leaders.

Highlights for the year

We would like to congratulate Karla on completing 
her Cert IV in ATSI Primary Health (Community) 
Certifi cate. Well Done! We are also pleased to have a 
full complement of staff for the team to run smoothly.

Future Directions

Our future direction is to help community members 
maintain and promote good health with happy Mothers 
and Children within our community.
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Chronic Disease – ITC

ITC Coordinator - Jodie Milne

ITC Team

Kristen Bobyk

Karen Smith

Patrick Sharpe

Jodie Milne is the Chronic Disease – ITC Coordinator 
and has been working at CKAHSAC since early 2017 in 
the Integrated Team Coordination (ITC) Program. 

The aims of the ITC program is to contribute to 
improving health outcomes for Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islanders people with chronic health 
conditions through better access to coordinated and 
multidisciplinary care. We also assist clients with 
accommodation and transport with our supplementary 
service program to attend Specialists and Allied Health 
appointments.

ITC team employs an Outreach Offi cer who has built 
relationships with clients within the program.  ITC 
provides support and advocacy for clients as required.

Highlights of the year

In April the Chronic Disease team organised a Diabetes 
Education day at the Ceduna Memorial Hall, we had 
over 100 clients screened. In attendance were the 
Dietician, Physio and Diabetes Educator who presented 
their service to the people in attendance.  We are in the 
process of organising a follow up event.

The Chronic Disease team arranged Feltman training 
with Diabetes SA; this was rolled out to all clinic staff 
to attend and was well received.

Within the team we have worked hard to source 
and contract a Diabetes Educator who now visits 
monthly.  CKAHSAC now have access to a Dietician and 
Podiatrist who visit every month through RDWA.

A women’s low impact exercise group has commenced 
every Thursday in the Clinic and Community Members 
are invited to attend.

Future Directions 

To increase access and support for Community 
Members who are at risk of developing a Chronic 
Disease or supporting those who have a diagnosed 
Chronic Disease. This will be supported by:

• Monthly data clean out of Communicare and up-

dating demographics 

• Ensuring that Chronic Disease Care Plans are 

in place for all clients and regular follow up is 

attended to.

• Staff development and training within the Clinic 

area.

• Ongoing training requirements for clinical staff 

LOGIQC, nKPIs and the relevant need for accurate 

documentation and CKAHSAC patient recall 

system with staff trained. 

• Commence community outreach services

Clinic Administration 

Clinic Administration Coordinator:

Shosharna Diment

Receptionists: 

Irene Smith, 

Sonya Taylor,

Randy Gray 

Shosharna Diment is the Clinic Administration 
Coordinator and the Medicare Billing Offi cer. She 
is responsible for the coordination/ management 
of the administration staff in the clinic. Shosharna 
organises the locum doctor recruitment and helps to 
train the doctors in the correct use of Communicare 
to claim Medicare, along with how to claim while on 
call at the hospital whilst providing in-patient care at 
the hospital. It is also Shosharna’s responsibility to 
submit the Doctor’s claims to Medicare and amend 
any rejected claims.

Irene Smith is the Senior Medical Receptionist. Her 
duties include greeting clients and visitors at front 
counter. Answering telephones and taking messages. 
Providing administrative support to clinic staff, 
updating patient bio graphic’s, organising medical 
appointments for clients, maintaining appointment 
schedules and arranging referrals when required 
along with scanning records/letters and medical 
summaries into patient fi les.

Sonya Taylor is the Medical Receptionist responsible 
for clients who present to the front counter. Her 
duties include answering phones, updating patient 
bio graphics, booking appointments and scanning 
patient records.

Randy Gray is the Medical Receptionist attached to 
the Child Health Team. He works closely with the 
Child Health team, helping them book appointments 
for clients and any other administrative tasks. His 
duties also include answering phones, booking 
appointments and scanning documents into patient 
records.

Shaun McLennan is the Transport Driver. He is 
responsible for picking up and dropping home 
clients who need transport to attend their medical 
appointments. He is responsible for maintaining the 
transport vehicle.
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Caitlyn Hills is the Practice Support Offi cer who 
provides administration support to the Doctor, 
Practice Manager and Clinic Staff. Caitlyn trains and 
supports the locum doctors and health workers in the 
use of Communicare. She helps with the running of 
Communicare reports to collate data for the practices 
funding reports.

Highlights for the year  

This year we have seen the glass taken down at 
reception. This makes the reception area more inviting 
and makes it easier for communication between the 
receptionists and patients. Feedback from clients is 
that it is a great improvement. 

The addition to Randy at reception has helped with the 
demands of the busy and full staffed clinic. 

Future Directions   

We have recently discussed the implementation of a 
Medicare tracking card which will hopefully not only 
increase our Medicare income but also help to provide 
better care to our clients. 

Senior Aboriginal Health Practitioner

Geraldine Ware 

Since being in the role of Senior AHP, my position is 
to assist clinical team staff on day to day basis.  Our 
main function in the clinic is screening clients daily 
before seeing a Doctor, acute or urgent walk-ins, 
checking Immunisation fridges, checking expiry dates 
on our supply’s, rotating stock, re-ordering clinical 
supply’s, restocking treatment rooms, maintaining all 
clinical equipment and doing QC/QA testing on these 
machines. We have a Doctors bag and emergency 
trolley that we check daily for expiry dates on stock.

Future Directions 

All clinic staff will be offered further training in 
Emergency Care, this will be conducted by the peak 
professional body for the remote and isolated health 
workforce of Australia (CRANA) who have a variety of 
training that include Emergency Triage for AHP/W’s. 
This training will be benefi cial for our staff working 
in our remote communities to assist clients when the 
need arises.

CKAHSAC is developing a new Model of Care, this will 
streamline a client’s journey through our clinic and all 
staff will follow the same process.
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Training/ Conferences Attended:

General Clinic Staff

• TTANGO STI Screening and General 

maintenance on Gene Expert Machine 

• Cardiovascular within Aboriginal Community

• First Aid and CPR

• In-house Pharmacy Training (Asthma, 

Medication Management)

• QAAMS 

• Managing Aggressive Behaviours 

• Child Safe Environments

• Diabetes SA (Feltman)

• Rural Practice Managers Workshop 

• Fire Warden Training 

• Immunisation Provider Course

• Trachoma Training 

• Emergency Triage In-service

• Diabetes Education Medication Management

• STI Education

• Communicare

• Respiratory In-service

• Sexual Health

• Cert IV in Primary Health Care (for some staff)

• Injections 

• Suicide Prevention

• Ear Health

• Eye Health

• Clean Needle Program

• AHCSA Training and Information 

• Managing Aggressive Behaviours

• Child Safe Environments

• Diabetes SA (Feltman)

Senior Aboriginal Health Practitioner

• AHCSA: Supervisor Workshop May 2018 

• Fair Work SA: Online Training Feb/June 2018
                                                 

Child Health Team 

• Ear Health training in Adelaide - June 2018

• The Child Health Team had the privilege to 

attend the Ear Health training provided by The 

Bench Marque Group as well as AHCSA. With the 

training the team now have further knowledge 

of identifying children’s ear health issue when 

raised during School screenings

Specialist Visits

90 Audiologist

37 Cardiologist

19 Diabetes Educator

50 Dietician

71 Endocrinologist

9 Ear, Nose and Throat Specialist

136 Women's Health GP

2 Heptologist

48 Opthamologist

69 Optometrist

121 Paediatrician

150 Physiotherapist

28 Podiatrist

37 Respiratory Specialist
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Programs Team Report
Acting Program Manager
Denise Karagiannis

In December 2017 Social Health Coordinator 
Melissa Miller resigned from the organisation to 
follow a career change  and AOD worker Ken Smith 
resigned in March 2018. These positions have yet to 
be fi lled.

All staff including part time and casual workers 
have provided valuable services to the organisation 
and the community. The dedication and 
commitment of all team members is appreciated 
particularly those who covered for others in times 
of need.

Programs

• Community & Residential Care

• Seaview Village Aged Care

• Commonwealth Home Support Program

• Environmental Health 

• Alcohol and Other Drugs 

• Social Health

• Gambling Help Service

• Social and Emotional Wellbeing

• Social Health

Individual Clients - By program 

Alcohol & Other Drugs 

Environmental Health

Sobering Up Unit

Social & Emotional 
Wellbeing

101

207

232

450

The average number of  clients attended - Per day

1.9 Alcohol & Other 

Drugs Program

2.2 Environmental 

Health Program

4.8
Social & Emotional 

Wellbeing Program
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Environmental Health 
Brief overview of positions 

Neil Coleman

James Scott

Garry Masters

The Environmental Health Team is responsible for 
promoting the improvement of Aboriginal health 
within the community by working within the goals of 
the primary health care principles.  The team provides 
clients with a range of primary health care services to 
improve their education, understanding and knowledge 
of social, health and wellbeing issues, as they relate to 
their living standards and surrounding environments. 
The team focus is on lessening the risk of disease 
and to improve health and well being in communities. 
Issues addressed include food safety, water quality, 
animal management, housing, land care, pest control, 
monitoring sewerage and water systems, rubbish 
collection and disposal. Environmental Health Workers 
are sometimes involved in helping, and teaching others 
to repair and maintain ‘health hardware’ like taps, 
toilets, fi ttings and drains in houses. Highlights for the year 

• The Environmental Health team has created a 

garden area at the back of the Admin building with 

the help from Shelley Price and Garry Masters. 

• A dust control project was undertaken at Seaview 

Village on the western and northern sides of the 

building. We worked in partnership with Complete 

Personal on this project. Thanks to Richard 

Saunders and his gang who assisted for the whole 

week and to Garry Masters who coordinated the 

program.

• We work closely with the visiting vet from Port 

Augusta who attends the Ceduna region every 3-6 

months. Regular home visits are conducted to 

perform maintenance checks, hard waste disposal, 

pest control, water testing and cleaning yards.

• A hard waste collection was held over a two 

week period with 148 clients participating. Neil 

negotiated with the District Council of Ceduna  and 

Darren Genrich from the local refuse depot to waive 

dump fees.

• A Pest Control program was conducted at Koonibba 

Community.  All community members were involved 

except for three who were away. This provided a 

great outcome. A big thank you to the Koonibba 

Council who supported the program. 

Environmental Health Services

Pest control

House hardware check

Home visits

Water testing

Home maintenance

Dog control

Transport

159

148

85

30

28

22

16

Training and conferences attended 

• The Environmental Health Team completed their 

Chainsaw Licence and the White Chemical Card.

• James completed his First Aid training. 

• Neil and James received certifi cates for Managing 

Aggressive Behaviour and Personal Safety.
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Seaview Village and Community 

Home Support Program 
Brief overview of positions 

Community and Residential Care Coordinator 

Coordination of the Seaview Village – ensure that 
residents are being provided with a culturally safe 
living environment, health care needs are being 
met, leisure and lifestyle activities formed to ensure 
continued community engagement by residents. 
Oversee the day to day requirements of the village, 
supervise and coordinate care workers, ensure all 
accreditation requirements are met and participate in 
community engagement where required. 

Coordination of the Community Home Support 
Program 

Supervise and coordinate community home support 
program staff. Assist with planning and projection of 
the program, work with staff to ensure KPI’s are met. 
Assist elderly people to remain safe and healthy in 
their homes. Provide support for community members 
to attend community events, plan and hold community 
events when required.

Seaview Village Care Worker 

Deliver a culturally appropriate, quality service for 
the residents of Seaview Village within the CKAHSAC 
policies and procedures and strategic plan. In line 
with legislative requirements for safe work practices, 
actively participate in all aspects of client care to 

provide a safe, clean, comfortable, secure living 
environment, and direct client care and support for all 
residents.

Community Home Support Program Workers 

Responsible for the provision of culturally appropriate 
home and community care services for the frail 
aged and disables. The CHSP worker will assist the 
community and residential care coordinator in the 
effi cient and effective planning and deliver of the CHSP 
program and activities consistent with the CKAHSAC 
strategic directions and funding requirements.

Highlights for the year

• This year again, there have been several 

improvements made at the village. New furniture 

has been purchased to enhance the resident rooms 

and make them more streamlined. 

• Seaview Village has had a great retention of staff 

and this has further built relationships between 

care workers and residents. 

• Seaview Village is working well with the clinic team 

to ensure that resident clinical needs are being met.  

• At this present time, we have 9 residents residing 

at Seaview Village and one more person arranging 

to move in which will take Seaview Village to full 

capacity. 

• This year the Village also received some much 

needed landscaping which was completed by 

Garry Masters, Neil Coleman, James Scott and the 

Complete Personnel workforce team. 
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Seaview Village Garden Upgrade

In June of this year (2018) the gardens and outdoor 
areas of Seaview Village were given a much needed 
makeover. This work was planned and carried out by 
Garry Masters and the Environmental Health Team, 
Neil Coleman and James Scott, Along with the help of 
volunteers from Ceduna Aboriginal Corporation and 
Complete Personnel (CDEP). 

This major landscaping project involved pruning 
existing plants. Removing unsightly plants and 
replacing with new ones. Installing 30 metres of 
garden edging, spreading 25 Tonne of 35mm creek 
pebbles, laying 116.5 square metres of synthetic grass 
and then spreading 4 cubic metres of red bark through 
remaining areas.

This ground cover creates a low maintenance garden, 
where dust will be less of an issue and the area will 
be more accessible and more enjoyable for use by the 
residents. 

Big thanks to the following volunteers for their help.

• Darryl Coleman and Kingsley Betts from CAC.

• Kerry Saunders, Clinton Riddle, Darren Taylor, 

Stuart McBain and Richie Saunders from the CDEP 

Program.

• The assistance from these people was very much 

appreciated.

• A special thanks also goes to CAC for the use of 

their bobcat for the project.
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Social Health
Brief overview of positions 

The role and responsibilities of the Social Health Team 
is to support, advocate, liaise and provide counselling 
to community members though self-referral or 
referral from an agency. The Social Health Team work 
collaboratively with other agencies in Ceduna to best 
support shared clients with agreed consent. The team 
visit Koonibba on a weekly basis and Scotdesco on 
a monthly basis. They can facilitate with Traditional 
Healing assistance through assessment. Along with 
offering Emergency Financial Assistance subject 
to assessment. Gambling Intervention is provided 
through therapy and working through the ‘Keeping 
Well, Living Strong’ booklet.

Normally there are three positions within the SEWB 
Team. In December 2017 the Coordinator,   Melissa 
Miller resigned for a career change opportunity. 
Congratulations to Melissa for a job well done. Your 
dedication and work ethic will be missed by the 
organisation. We have been unsuccessful in fi lling this 
position. Simone Miller is now the Team Leader and is 
supported by Kingsley Ware.

Simone has a Diploma in Narrative Approaches and 
Kingsley   is currently studying Certifi cate 4 in Primary 
Health.   

The team provides our community with support, 
advocacy and liaison, making client referrals to 
appropriate services. A large part of their work 
is outreach which provides optimum support to 
clients not necessarily just in an offi ce. They work 
in partnership with other organisations within the 
Ceduna region to ensure clients are given the best 
support possible.

The Team participate in weekly rosters with Street 
Beat, along with attending fortnightly Vulnerable 
Persons Framework and Family Safety Framework 
Meetings.

Highlights for the year 

Gambling

• In August 2017, Melissa was involved in attending 

the APY lands for the Gambling/Risky Behaviours 

project with Flinders Aboriginal Gambling Service 

visiting Indulkana, Mimili, Fregon and Ernabella. 

• Melissa also spent time with Flinders Aboriginal 

Gambling Service at the Adelaide Women’s Prison 

conducting the ACCEPT program. 

• The team, assisted by other CKAHSAC staff 

developed and launched a DVD about gambling.
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Training and Conferences Attended 

• June 2018: Simone and Kingsley - Marumali 

Training in Adelaide the training was around the                        

Stolen Generation and how to work with clients.

• May 2018: Simone - SEWB forum held in Mount 

Gambier  

• April 2018: Kingsley commenced his Certifi cate 4 in 

Primary Health Care with AHCSA.

• November 2017: Simone and Melissa -  National 

Association for Gambling Services Conference

• October 2017: Simone - Social Emotional 

Wellbeing Forum in Port Adelaide and a Suicide            

consultation meeting at SAMHRI

• October 2017: Kingsley – NACCHO – Men’s  Ochre 

Health conference  in Darwin

• October 2017: Melissa – Nunkuwarrin Yunti – SEWB 

Managers meeting

• September 2017: Melissa – Gambling Help Services 

Meeting 

• August 2017: Simone - Alcohol, Tobacco and other 

Drugs Conference in Adelaide

• July  2017: Kingsley  - Social Emotional Wellbeing 

Forum in Adelaide.

• July 2017: Simone  - National Suicide Prevention 

Conference in Brisbane.

• July 2017: Kingsley -  MAYBO training in Ceduna

Future Directions

• To establish Kingsley’s Walk for Wellbeing as an 

annual event for women and men.  

• Kingsley is collaborating with other agencies to 

establish a meeting place in Ceduna for Aboriginal 

men. (Similar to a Men’s Shed).

• Try to incorporate culture into our programs 

through art workshops by creating resources 

signifi cant to this area and to include local language 

into our resources.

Social and Emotional Wellbeing

• Kingsley arranged a Walk for Wellbeing Program 

in partnership with Ceduna Aboriginal Corporation, 

Centacare and The Youth Hub. Seventeen people 

participated in the three day program which 

offered reconnection to country and culture 

through a walk from Goog’s Track and back to 

Ceduna. Congratulations to Brandon Willis and 

Isaiah Fielding who completed all sections of 

the walk. The event was a huge success and 

appreciated by those who took part. The West Coast 

Sentinel reported on the walk which will hopefully 

encourage other community members to attend 

future events.

• Simone has successfully completed her fi rst year 

of being registered with the Australian Counselling 

Association.

• Simone encouraged and supported a client to 

attend and complete the Deadly Thinking Workshop 

held in March. 
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Sobering Up Unit & 

Alcohol and Other Drugs 
Brief overview of positions

Sobering Up Unit 

The Unit provides a safe and caring environment in 
which intoxicated people can sober up. This is a safe 
alternative to “sleeping rough” and to police custody 
for those people deemed to be at risk under the Public 
Intoxication Act.

The Unit has twenty one beds and operates twenty four 
hours per day, seven days a week and is staffed by a 
coordinator/team leader, ten permanent part-time 
care workers and four casual care workers.

Admissions decreased by 207 on last year. There is no 
obvious reason for this and admission numbers remain 
unpredictable.  

Alcohol and Other Drugs Worker 

Aims for these programs are to provide-

• improved aftercare support services to encourage 

movement from harm reduction to treatment based 

services

• assertive outreach to communities to identify and 

respond to risk referral to clinical services

• expand transport options for vulnerable people to 

and from health services

Ken Smith worked in this position until he resigned 
in March 2018. Ken engaged with the Scotdesco and 
Koonibba communities by visiting weekly.

Melissa Miller was acting coordinator from July 2017 
until she resigned in December 2017.

Marianne Jacobsen was appointed Team Leader for 
the Sobering Up Unit in January 2018. Marianne has 
proven herself to be a quick learner and capable 
leader.

Highlights for the year 
• The AOD program held two successful camps for 

male clients. The fi rst was in August at Coombra 

Beach and the second was held in December at 

Kingoonya.

Training and Conferences Attended
• Sobering Up Unit Care Workers have enrolled 

at TAFE in Certifi cate III in Community Services 

(Alcohol and Other Drugs).  

• Sobering Up Unit/Seaview Village Casual Pool 

Workers are enrolled in Certifi cate III Individual 

Client Support (previously Aged Care).

SUU Occupancy Rate 

38.04%
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Corporate Services Team Report  
There has been a lot of work happening this year 
behind the scenes. Many large projects have been 
initiated with the improved outcomes likely to be visible 
in 2018-2019.

I’d like to take this opportunity to thank the entire 
Corporate Services  Team for their dedication, support 
and tireless efforts over the past 12 months and 
beyond. A lot of work goes on behind the scenes to 
ensure CKAHSAC meet’s its compliance, legal, quality 
and business  requirements .

Highlights and Achievements 

QIC Highlights 

Over the course of the 2017-2018 year, CKAHSAC’s 
Quality Improvement & Accreditation Offi cer, Alicia 
Warmington was invited to participate in the review 
of the 6th edition Quality Improvement Council (QIC) 
Standards. It was a great honour to have CKAHSAC 
staff member, Alicia, invited to participate on a panel 
of such calibre. Alicia has completed many forms of 
accreditation training and this invitation was a true 
testament to the wealth of skill and knowledge Alicia 
possesses. 

In the lead up to designing and releasing the new 
7th edition QIC standards, Alicia participated in a 
number of expert panels for the draft of the standards 
and CKAHSAC was one of the 16 organisations to 
participate in the pilot project. The pilot included an 
internal assessment prior to the release of the new 
standards in 2017.  

The QIC Health and Community Services Standards 7th 
Edition were approved and released in October of 2017 
with CKAHSAC featuring in the acknowledgements.
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2016/17 Audit

CKAHSAC’s 16/17 fi nancial audit was received in good 
standing. There were no material issues and CKAHSAC 
received a low risk rating on all risks associated 
with the management of not-for-profi t fi nances. 
The independent Auditors report did not identify any 
matters to report. This is a refl ection of the continued 
dedication and hard work from the fi nance team to 
ensure CKAHSAC remains compliant with all statutory 
and funding requirements.

Brief overview of positions 

Corporate Services Manager

Tanya Darke/Jessie Sleep

Responsible for planning, budgeting, management and 
administration of all Corporate Services functions of 
CKAHSAC. This includes: Information Management, 
Quality Improvement and Accreditation; Workplace 
Health and Safety; Assets and Procurement; 
Information, Communication and Technology; 
Computer Whisperer; Finance, Payroll, Human 
Services, Industrial relations, Contract Management; 
Maintenance; and Compliance.

Senior Finance Coordinator

Sandra Hills

The position is responsible for preparation of fi nancial 
reports and briefs; developing and monitoring 
CKAHSAC’s budget; monitoring of organisational 
fi nancial policies and procedures in accordance 
with CKAHSAC ‘s funding/service agreements and 
legislative requirements.

People & Culture Coordinator

Lee-Ann Miller

Responsible for planning, coordination and 
administration of all Human Resource functions. 
This includes: employment contracts, inductions, 
performance management processes, recruitment 
and selection, grievance and confl ict resolution, 
development and negotiations of CKAHSAC’s 
Enterprise Agreements. 

Quality Improvement Accreditation Offi cer

Alicia Warmington

Coordinate and lead the various quality and risk 
activities of CKAHSAC.  This includes but is not limited 
to: Accreditation, Continuous Quality Improvement, 
Risk Management, Work Health and Safety, Injury 
Management, Document Management, Compliance, 
Auditing and the management of policies and 
procedures.

Payroll Offi cer

Kelly Sleep

Responsible for providing administrative support 
to Human Resources, police clearance checks, 
timesheets, leave and payroll processing, PAYG 
reporting, superannuation payments, increment and 
wage system management.

 

Finance Offi cer

Judith Zippel

Responsible for ensuring the effi cient and effective 
processing of the accounts payable and receivables 
function for CKAHSAC including the ordering of 
supplies from time to time and the coordination and 
booking of travel arrangements for staff.

Procurement, Infrastructure Offi cer

Amy Holmes

Responsible for the coordination of CKAHSAC’s 
contractors, preventative and acute maintenance, 
CKAHSAC’s asset database, electrical test and tagging 
of CKAHSAC equipment, purchasing, residential 
property coordination, equipment borrowing and 
disposal, and administrative aspects of CKAHSAC’s 
asset management systems.  

Administration Support Offi cer

Shelley Price

The position provides a professional, confi dential 
business administrative including compliance service. 
Includes coordination of Mandatory Training across 
all of CKAHSAC, preparation and coordination of the 
CKAHSAC Annual Report, preparation of agendas and 
minuting of various CKAHSAC meetings, Facebook and 
website administration and other administrative tasks.

Executive Personal Assistant

Jessi McKenzie

The position of Executive Personal Assistant (EPA) 
handles CKAHSAC Governance, the coordination of 
Board Meetings, including taking minutes. Other 
EPA roles include Consumer Feedback, the CEO’s 
calendar, travel and general support to the CEO when 
needed. The EPA handles new Director inductions, 
the coordination and preparation of ORIC compliance 
reporting and updates CKAHSAC membership lists and 
notifi es changes of offi cer and membership to ORIC. 

Cleaner 

Sara Smith

This position is responsible for the general cleaning of 
all CKAHSAC facilities.
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Site Improvements

CKAHSAC were fortunate enough to receive just under 
$240,000 in one off grant funding rounds for site 
improvements to Seaview Village, Koonibba Clinic and 
the Dr’s House. 

Assets and Equipment

This year we upgraded CKAHSAC’s 
Telecommunications to enable the teams to be more 
mobile with their service delivery. This included new 
laptops and mobile phones.

Compliance Activities

• Commenced review of all internal auditing 

templates to align with current standards

• Review of Criminal History Check procedures

Future Directions

Successful Re-Accreditation

• CHSP Program under the Home Care Standards.

• Organisational Accreditation under the Quality 

Improvement Council 7th edition standards.

Implementation of Offi ce 365 and related 
applications including the set up of SharePoint as a 
Records Management System for CKAHSAC.

Improve CKAHSAC’s asset management system by 
implementing electronic software that   combines 
depreciation, scheduling of preventative and ad-hock 
maintenance and provides automated visual reporting.

Implement fi nancial systems to support moving 
towards a paperless environment and improve 
current practices.

• New accounts payable process to reduce double 

handling and paper wastage.

• Implement electronic time sheeting.

Support staff to gain formal qualifi cations and 
upskill in the following areas:

• Accounting

• Risk Management

• Records Management 

• Project Management

• Power BI

• Xero

• LogiQC

Details as at 30 June, 2018 

Workforce Statistics for 2017/18

Finances

CKAHSAC fi nished the end of the fi nancial period 
with yet another successful year. Grant funding 
reports were submitted within reasonable 
timeframes, fi gures budgeted at the start of the 
year were accurate, and CKAHSAC again increased 
our equity line (see audited fi nancial statements 
for further information).

Training and conferences attended 

• Xerocon 2017

Nexia Edwards Marshall Education and Not for 

Profi t Training Day

• Agpal and QIP 2018 Conference

• AACQA Seminar 

• HR Leaders Summit SA

• Xero Training

• Rural Minds – Rural and Remote Mental Health

• Safe Talk – Suicide Prevention

• Managing Aggressive Behaviours

• Aboriginal Health Council – Tackling Indigenous 

Smoking (In-Service Training)

• Cultural Responsiveness

• AICD Governance Training

• Health Safety Representative (HSR) Level 1 

Our workforce - By gender

Female 70% Male 30%

Aboriginality Ratio - Employees

Sobering Up Unit

Corporate Services

Social Health Team 

Environmental Health

Clinic

Seaview Village

38%

20%

100%

100%

86%

83%
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A Message from Dan Kyr, 

Network Operations Manager

This year has been a transitional year for all ICT 
users after a very intense migration to the new 
datacentre and the changeover of helpdesk providers 
(Oreta). 

There has been a settling in period with Oreta 
as they, and our staff, adjusted to the new 
relationship. Oreta have implemented several Quality 
Improvement plans to increase their understanding 
of the sites ICT requirements and have brought on 
a customer experience manager to move closer 
towards their goal of complete user satisfaction. 

Oreta have been busy in the background working 
to stabilise and improve the ICT platform. There 
has been a signifi cant amount of work completed 
to maintain compliance and stay up to date.  There 
have been zero intrusions of malicious software 
making the platform one of the most secure medical 
environments outside of government backed 
organisations. 

A Business Development Offi cer was employed by 
Nunyara on behalf of the ICT platform to review and 
defi ne the governance structure of the shared ICT 
platform. 

Dan Kyr
Network Operations Manager

CKAHSAC

Future Directions

Offi ce 365 - we are excited for some of the functions 
that will be introduced including the capacity to 
implement intranets and Skype video conferencing. 

• New initiatives in Digital Health 

• Citrix upgrades

All in all, a great amount of work has been done to 
ensure that the current version of the platform and 
the Joint Venture is the very best that it can be and 
I look forwards to continuing to assist with creating 
a better environment for all users to continue to 
provide the very best healthcare to their clients. 
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THANK YOU
Thank you to all the staff who contributed to our annual report by way of articles, photos, production and 
distribution. A special thank you to Print Junction and in particular Luke Burton for their assistance and 
support, along with amazing creativity and design efforts in putting together this report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FUNDING BODIES

Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service Aboriginal Corporation formally wishes to thank all our 
funding bodies for their continued support throughout 2017/18. We would not be able to support the 
Aboriginal People of Ceduna and surrounding communities without your help.

Country Health SA SA Health
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DIRECTORS REPORT 

 
Your Directors present this report on the Corporation for the financial year ended 30 June 2018. 

Directors 
The names of each person who has been a Director during the year and to the date of this report are: 

Chairman: Debra Joy Miller 

Deputy Chairman: 
Secretary: 

Leeroy Bilney 
Tracey Vincent (ceased as Secretary 21 November 2017 and ceased as 
Director 5 June 2018) 
Alana Gunter (commenced as Secretary 21 November 2017) 

CEO (Responsible Officer): Zell Dodd 

Directors: Robert Larking 

 Robert Larking  

 Margaret Binell  

 Kevina Ware (commenced as Director 11 January 2018) 

  

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated. 

Principal Activities and Objects 
The core business of CKAHSAC is to provide comprehensive primary health care services to the Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander communities of Ceduna, Koonibba and the surrounding homelands. Service provision 
includes comprehensive primary health care and chronic disease management, Community Home Support 
Program (CHSP) formerly known as Home and Community Care, low level residential aged care, social and 
emotional health (Bringing Them Home Program) and emergency assistance, Sobering Up Unit, alcohol and 
other drugs and assertive outreach, wellness and health promotion and environmental health.  
 
As an Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Service, CKAHSAC is committed to improving the health and 
wellbeing of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people in our community through a robust quality improvement 
framework. 
 
Objects 
The objects of the Corporation are to develop and provide a service which meets the health needs of local 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people in a culturally safe and respectful way, having regard to their total 
social, emotional and physical wellbeing, and the importance of health promotion and preventative measures:  

 integrating with and complementing existing service providers and agencies, to improve the social and 
emotional determinants of Health; 

 providing a base for health units and other agencies providing services to the local community; and 
 supporting safe environments that allow for the holistic delivery of health care to Aboriginal people; 
 support and educate local Aboriginal people to become informed of the options available to them for 

Health and local community services; 
 develop and maintain relationships and partnerships to ensure coordinated and effective health services 

for local Aboriginal people; 
 develop and expand outreach services, special clinics and targeted programs where necessary; 
 support education, training of health professionals in Aboriginal health; 
 increase workplace opportunities and development opportunities for Aboriginal people; 
 research the needs of local Aboriginal people and evaluate new and existing services; 
 actively attempt to ensure the integration of Aboriginal Health in mainstream sites, where this will be 

beneficial to our clients. 
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 provide health care and initiatives targeted at youth, elders and men in the local Aboriginal community;  

and 
 take such other actions and initiatives as are deemed appropriate by the Board for the purposes of 

supporting and funding the other listed objects. 
 

Short-term and Long-term Objectives 
CKAHSAC objectives is to provide a unique, accountable, holistic and integrated service by providing best 
practice healthcare to the West Coast Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities, which enable individuals 
and their families to achieve improved health outcomes, and to participate in and enjoy community and culture. 
We aim to: 

1. Deliver and maintain respectful, safe and high quality holistic health care; 
2. Reduce the gap in Indigenous life expectancy by 2031 through working closely with our Aboriginal and 

Torres strait Islander communities, our key service delivery stakeholders and our funders; 
3. Work with and support the community to achieve improved health outcomes; and 
4. Work with its communities to participate in and enjoy the community and culture. 

 

Strategies 
There are four (4) key strategies that underpin the directions that will make a difference to the way we work as 
one organisation, the way we improve the delivery of services for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people, 
and translate the aspirations into reality. The milestones for the strategies to be implemented are identified in the 
short term (12 months), medium term (2 years) and long term (3 – 5 years). 
 
Strategic Direction 1 - Create ‘One Organisation’ 

 To create ‘one organisation’ we all need to share the same vision. We need to be better at working with 
each other, knowing each others jobs and regularly talking with each other. We need to do the same with 
our key stakeholders, the services that help us work with our communities. We have to be professional in 
the way we look, the way we work together and the messages we are delivering to our communities. We 
have to make sure that we have the right skills in our workforce to meet our communities’ health and 
social and emotional wellbeing needs. 

 
Strategic Direction 2 - ‘Improve Our Service Delivery, Efficiency and Management’ 

 To empower management and staff to make the necessary day-to-day decisions within the overall 
directions set by the Board. We will improve our service delivery to the community. We will support and 
care for staff and develop a realistic and achievable workforce plan that promotes efficiency, 
accountability, reliability and fosters creativity and innovation.  

 
Strategic Direction 3 - ‘Improve Our Infrastructure and Facilities’ 

 It is paramount to seek suitable infrastructure that supports the continuity of care to clients that allows 
their needs to be met and one that is conducive to bridging relationships between all teams. The design 
will have improved waiting areas including an outdoor area, and private counselling and working areas 
that create a sense of belonging and confidentiality. This is priority for the organisation and we will 
pursue the funding to either seek a new building or completely fix the existing one.  

 
Strategic Direction 4 – ‘Bring our Aspirations to Life’ 

 CKAHSAC’s vision is to provide an integrated health service that is free of racism and health inequalities 
for the West Coast Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities which enables individuals and their 
families to achieve enriched health outcomes that also addresses the social determinants of health. 

 
In the next five (5) years CKAHSAC will focus on: 

 Renewing our pride and our identity as ‘one organisation’ and creating a sense of belonging.  
 Providing a stable organisational structure that will provide the leadership and support the vision for good 

health and wellbeing into the future and for the future of our young generations. 
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 Designing a suitable building that will support and empower the Board, staff, our Aboriginal and Torres 

Strait Islander communities and key stakeholders to strengthen the confidence and trust by working 
together in a culturally safe, meaningful and respectful way. 

 Creating a workforce that understands and supports the gender aspect of service delivery by promoting 
the provision of a male and female doctor, and creating more workforce opportunities for local Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander people in a variety of health related positions. 

 Constantly enhancing and promoting our services and finding new ways to inform and engage with our 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities and key stakeholders to further shape and enhance 
the future of Aboriginal community controlled health service delivery. 

 
Key Performance Measures 

Key Quality Performance Achievements 
CKAHSAC is committed to continuous quality improvement and has obtained accreditation with a range of 
external bodies. In 2016-2017 CKAHSAC achieved Organisational re-accreditation under the Quality 
Improvement Council- Health and Community Services Standards. The report from the assessment team 
highlighted the below strengths of CKAHSAC.  
 
Building Quality Organisations 
Key achievements include the financial systems, which are comprehensive and incorporate six-monthly audits. 
Recruitment and employment systems are robust with performance review in place and an Employment 
Assistance Program and debriefing and supervision to support staff in delivering positive outcomes. Risk is 
embedded across CKAHSAC and legislative compliance systems are well informed and sustainable. The attitude 
of continuous improvement is evident throughout the Corporation and is commendable given the upheaval of 
recent years. 
 
Providing Quality Services and Programs 
Key achievements include the Outreach Program, the diversity of services offered in a variety of settings; the 
intake and assessment system that incorporates risk, is comprehensive and able to be shared with other health 
practitioners using Communicare. Cultural competence and safety is evident across all programs and services, 
with flexible responses managed in respectful ways. 
 
Sustaining Quality External Relationships 
CKAHSAC is commended for its position as a lead agency in the delivery of services to the Aboriginal population 
in Ceduna and surrounding communities. It is apparent that related stakeholders see CKAHSAC as being integral 
to the holistic nature of support and service provision for the client groups they have in common. The number and 
varied nature of partnership agreements, Memorandum of Understandings (MOUs), forum memberships, 
committees and working parties that CKAHSAC is a participant in are testimony to the valuable role that 
CKAHSAC plays in the local and broader community. 
 
Participation in tertiary and third party research is a strong point for CKAHSAC. Recommendations and findings 
from research, statistical data and evaluation relating to the Aboriginal population of Ceduna and surrounding 
communities form a strong evidence base used in CKAHSAC’s planning and service modelling.  
 
Health promotion and awareness of healthy lifestyles among the community is a key role of CKAHSAC. 
Community groups are encouraged to contribute to service planning, and in doing so become increasingly 
engaged in health education and managing their own health and that of their families. 
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The Corporation measures its own performance through the use of both quantitative and qualitative benchmarks.  
The benchmarks are used by the Directors to assess the financial sustainability of the Corporation and whether 
the Corporation’s short-term and long-term objectives are being achieved. 

Results 
The net result of operations attributable to the Corporations activities was a surplus of $509,306. 
(2017: surplus of $342,639).  

 
Taxation 
No taxation has been paid since incorporation nor is there likely to be any tax payable in respect of the 2018
financial year. The Directors do not expect the status of the body to change in this regard and accordingly no 
provision for income tax has been made. 
 
The Directors have accepted the view of the Corporation’s Accountants and the Corporation’s Legal Advisor, that 
the Corporation is a non profit Community Organisation, so accordingly no provision for income tax needs to be 
made, as the income derived by the Community Organisation is expressly exempt from income tax. 

 
Events Subsequent to the End of the Reporting Period 
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the Corporation, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the 
Corporation in future years. 

 
Membership 
The Corporation is an Aboriginal Corporation incorporated under the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander) Act 2006. If the Corporation is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to 
contribute a maximum of $Nil each towards meeting any outstanding obligations of the Corporation. At 30 June 
2018, the total amount that members of the Corporation are liable to contribute if the Corporation is wound up is 
$Nil. 

 
Meetings of Directors 
During the financial year, 12 meetings of Directors were held. Attendances by each Director were as follows:  

Directors Meetings 

 Number eligible to attend Number attended 
Debra Miller 13 11 

Leeroy Bilney  13 9 

Tracey Vincent  12 8 

Robert Larking  13 11 

Margaret Binell 13 10 

Alana Gunter  13 9 

Kevina Ware 6 3 
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Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.  
Nexia Edwards Marshall is an independent firm of Chartered Accountants. It is affiliated with, but independent from, Nexia 
Australia Pty Ltd, which is a member of Nexia International, a worldwide network of independent accounting and consulting 
firms. Neither Nexia International nor Nexia Australia Pty Ltd deliver services in its own name or otherwise. Nexia International 
Limited and the member firms of the Nexia International network (including those members which trade under a name which 
includes the word NEXIA) are not part of a worldwide partnership.  
The trademarks NEXIA INTERNATIONAL, NEXIA and the NEXIA logo are owned by Nexia International Limited and used 
under licence.

L3 153 Flinders Street 
Adelaide SA 5000     
GPO Box 2163 
Adelaide SA 5001 
p  +61 8 8139 1111    
w nexiaem.com.au

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  

ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 
 

 Note 2018 2017 
  $ $ 

 
Revenue 2 9,017,453 7,568,663

Employee remuneration  (5,120,566) (4,454,104)

Depreciation and amortisation expense 6 (134,671) (108,102)
Bad and doubtful debts expense 3 - 315

Equipment - Less than $1000  (34,037) (53,577)

Motor vehicle expenses  (139,521) (161,475)

Utilities expense  (133,268) (155,303)

Repairs & Maintenance  (48,026) (81,106)

Staff training and development expenses  (65,142) (18,857)

Audit, legal and consultancy fees  (135,279) (218,259)

Client support services expenses  (304,187) (124,612)

Unexpended Funds  (1,047,463) (720,436)

Locum expenses  (614,877) (429,605)

Sundry expenses  (731,110) (700,903)
Current year operating surplus before income tax  509,306 342,639

Tax expense                     -                    - 

Net current year operating surplus after income tax  509,306 342,639

Other comprehensive income  - -

Total comprehensive income for the year  509,306 342,639

Total comprehensive income attributable to Members of the 
Corporation  

509,306 342,639

 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2018 

 
 Note 2018 2017 
  $ $ 
ASSETS    

CURRENT ASSETS     

Cash on hand 4    3,383,713  2,493,668 

Accounts receivable and other debtors 5            6,741  37,885 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS      3,390,454  2,531,553 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS     

Property, plant and equipment 6     1,456,325  1,250,934 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS       1,456,325  1,250,934 

TOTAL ASSETS      4,846,779  3,782,487 

LIABILITIES    

CURRENT LIABILITIES     

Accounts payable and other payables 7     1,585,624  1,070,096 

Employee provisions 8 329,226       306,265 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES       1,914,850  1,376,361 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES     

Employee provisions  8 78,213 61,716 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   78,213 61,716 

TOTAL LIABILITIES   1,993,063 1,438,077 

NET ASSETS  2,853,716 2,344,410 

EQUITY    

Retained surplus  1,769,098 1,513,897 

Reserves 9 1,084,618 830,513 

TOTAL EQUITY  2,853,716 2,344,410 

    

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

 
 

Note 
Retained 
Surplus Capital Reserve 

Asset 
Replacement 

Reserve Total Equity 
  $ $ $ $ 
Balance at 1 July 2016  1,408,646 593,125 - 2,001,771 

   

Comprehensive income   

Operating Surplus for the year  342,639 - - 342,639 

Other comprehensive income for the year 9 - - - - 

Transfer (from) to Capital Reserves 9 (167,160) 167,160 - - 

Transfer (from) to Asset Replacement 
Reserve  (70,228) - 70,228

 
- 

Total equity movements attributable to 
members of the entity  105,251 167,160 70,228

 
342,639 

   

Balance at 30 June 2017  1,513,897 760,285 70,228 2,344,410 

Balance at 1 July 2017  1,513,897 760,285 70,228 2,344,410 

   
Comprehensive income   

 
Operating Surplus for the year  

509,306 - - 509,306 

Other comprehensive income for the year 9 - - - - 

Transfer (from) to Capital Reserves 9 (254,105) 254,105 - - 

Transfer (from) to Asset Replacement 
Reserve  - - -

 
- 

Total equity movements attributable to 
members of the entity  

255,201 254,105 - 509,306 

Balance at 30 June 2018  1,769,098 1,014,390 70,228 2,853,716 

  

  

 The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 Note 2018 2017 
  $ $ 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

Commonwealth, State and Local Government grants  8,001,241 7,086,555 

Interest received  32,214 29,953 

Other Receipts  1,694,085 1,209,952 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (8,009,682)  (7,367,193)  

Net GST (Paid)/Refunded  (455,309)  (341,473)  

Net cash generated from operating activities 14 1,262,549 617,794 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  2,350  -  

Payment for property, plant and equipment  (374,854) (245,271) 

    

Net cash (used in) investing activities  (372,504) (245,271) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

Repayment of finance liabilities  - - 

Net cash used in financing activities  - - 

Net increase in cash held  890,045 372,523 

Cash on hand at beginning of the financial year  2,493,668 2,121,145 

Cash on hand at end of the financial year 4 3,383,713 2,493,668 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 
 

The financial statements cover Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service (Aboriginal Corporation) as an 
individual entity, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service 
(Aboriginal Corporation) is incorporated under the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 
2006 and is a Corporation limited by guarantee. 
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue on the           of October 2018 by the Directors of the 
Corporation. 

 
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Preparation  
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Corporations 
(Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission 
Act 2012 and Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations). The 
Corporation is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting 
Standards. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are 
presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise. 

 

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis 
and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected 
non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial 
statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

Accounting Policies 
a. Revenue 
 Non-reciprocal grant revenue is recognised in profit or loss when the entity obtains control of the 

grant and it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the entity and 
the amount of the grant can be measured reliably. 

 If conditions are attached to the grant which must be satisfied before it is eligible to receive the 
contribution, the recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are 
satisfied. 

 When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value 
directly back to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is 
recognised in the state of financial position as a liability until the service has been delivered to the 
contributor, otherwise the grant is recognised as income on receipt. 

 Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service (Aboriginal Corporation) receives non-reciprocal 
contributions of assets from the government and other parties for zero or a nominal value. These 
assets are recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in the statement of financial position, 
with a corresponding amount of income recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

 Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received.  

 Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial 
assets is the rate inherent in the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to 
receive a dividend has been established. 

 Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the 
customer. 

 All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 
 

NOTE 1 
b. 

: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT) 
Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities 
The Corporation measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value on either a recurring or 
non-recurring basis, depending on the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standard.  

 Fair value is the price the Corporation would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to 
transfer a liability in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable 
and willing market participants at the measurement date.  

 As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing 
information is used to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having 
regard to the characteristics of the specific asset or liability. The fair values of assets and liabilities 
that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. 
These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data. 

 To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the 
asset or liability (i.e. the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or 
liability) or, in the absence of such a market, the most advantageous market available to the entity 
at the end of the reporting period (i.e. the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of the 
asset or minimises the payments made to transfer the liability, after taking into account transaction 
costs and transport costs). 

 For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to use the asset in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.  

 The fair value of liabilities may be valued, where there is no observable market price in relation to 
the transfer of such financial instruments, by reference to observable market information where 
such instruments are held as assets. Where this information is not available, other valuation 
techniques are adopted and, where significant, are detailed in the respective note to the financial 
statements. 

c. Property, Plant and Equipment  
 Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated, less, 

where applicable, accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.  

 Freehold property 
 Freehold land and buildings are shown at cost or fair value based on periodic, but at least triennial, 

valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.  

 In periods when the freehold land and buildings are not subject to an independent valuation, the 
Directors conduct Directors’ valuations to ensure the carrying amount for the land and buildings is 
not materially different to the fair value. 

 Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. Revaluation 
decreases that offset previous increases of the same class of assets shall be recognised in other 
comprehensive income under the heading of revaluation surplus. All other decreases are 
recognised in profit or loss. 

 Any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross 
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. 

 Freehold land and buildings that have been contributed at no cost or for nominal cost are valued 
and recognised at the fair value of the asset at the date it is acquired.  
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NOTE 1 
c 

 
: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT) 
Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont.) 
Plant and equipment 

 Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying 
amount of plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, the carrying 
amount is written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses 
are recognised either in profit or loss or as a revaluation decrease if the impairment losses relate 
to a revalued asset. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment 
indicators are present (refer to Note 1(f) for details of impairment). 

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the Corporation and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All other repairs and 
maintenance are recognised as expenses in profit or loss in the financial period in which they are 
incurred.   

 Plant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost or for nominal cost are recognised at 
the fair value of the asset at the date it is acquired.  
Software 
Software are measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Software has an estimated useful life of 
between one and five years. It is assessed annually for impairment. 

 Depreciation 
 The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including buildings and capitalised lease assets, but 

excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life to the 
entity commencing from the time the asset is available for use. Leasehold improvements are 
depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful 
lives of the improvements. 

 The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:  

 Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate 
 Buildings 2.5% 

 Plant and equipment 7 – 33% 

 Motor Vehicles 22.5% 

 Software 20 – 33% 

 The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end 
of each reporting period.  

 An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. 
These gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. When 
revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are 
transferred to retained surplus. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 
 
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT) 
d. Leases 
 Leases of property, plant and equipment, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to 

the ownership of the asset but not the legal ownership are transferred to the entity, are classified 
as finance leases. 

 Finance leases are capitalised, recognising an asset and a liability equal to the present value of 
the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. 

 Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives where it is 
likely that the entity will obtain ownership of the asset. Lease payments are allocated between the 
reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period. 

 Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the 
lessor, are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-
line basis over the life of the lease term. 

e. Financial Instruments 
 Initial recognition and measurement 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the 
Corporation commits itself to either purchase or sell the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is 
adopted). 

 Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs except where the 
instrument is classified “at fair value through profit or loss”, in which case transaction costs are 
recognised as expenses in profit or loss immediately. 

 Classification and subsequent measurement 
 Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the effective 

interest method, or cost. 

 Amortised cost is calculated as the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at initial recognition less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment, and 
adjusted for any cumulative amortisation of the difference between that initial amount and the 
maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method. 

 The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the 
relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial 
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to 
expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying amount with a 
consequential recognition of an income or expense item in profit or loss. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT) 
e. Financial Instruments (Cont). 
 (i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

  Financial assets are classified at “fair value through profit or loss” when they are held for 
trading for the purpose of short-term profit taking, derivatives not held for hedging 
purposes, or when they are designated as such to avoid an accounting mismatch or to 
enable performance evaluation where a group of financial assets is managed by key 
management personnel on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk 
management or investment strategy. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value 
with changes in fair value (ie gains and losses) recognised included in profit or loss. 

 (ii) Loans and receivables 

  Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss through the amortisation 
process and when the financial asset is derecognised. 

 (iii) Held-to-maturity investments 

  Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed maturities 
and fixed or determinable payments, and it is the Corporation’s intention to hold these 
investments to maturity. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or 
losses are recognised in profit or loss through the amortisation process and when the 
financial asset is derecognised. 

 (iv) Available-for-sale investments 

  Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial assets that are either not 
capable of being classified into other categories of financial assets due to their nature or 
they are designated as such by management. They comprise investments in the equity of 
other entities where there is neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments. 

  They are subsequently measured at fair value with any remeasurements other than 
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in other 
comprehensive income. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or 
loss pertaining to that asset previously recognised in other comprehensive income is 
reclassified into profit or loss. 

  Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets when they are not 
expected to be sold within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. All other 
available-for-sale financial assets are classified as current assets. 

 (v) Financial liabilities 

  Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial guarantees are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss through the 
amortisation process and when the financial liability is derecognised. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT) 
e. Financial Instruments (Cont) 
 Classification and subsequent measurement (Cont) 
 Impairment 
 A financial asset (or a group of financial assets) is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is 

objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events (a “loss event”) having 
occurred, which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset(s). 

 In the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the market 
value of the instrument is considered a loss event. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or 
loss immediately. Also, any cumulative decline in fair value previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified into profit or loss at this point. 

 In the case of financial assets carried at amortised cost, loss events may include: indications that 
the debtors, or a group of debtors, are experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or 
delinquency in interest or principal payments; indications that they will enter into bankruptcy or 
other financial reorganisation; and changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with 
defaults. 

 For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a separate 
allowance account is used to reduce the carrying amount of financial assets impaired by credit 
losses. After having undertaken all possible measures of recovery, if the management establishes 
that the carrying amount cannot be recovered by any means, at that point the written-off amounts 
are charged to the allowance account or the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is 
reduced directly if no impairment amount was previously recognised in the allowance accounts. 

 When the terms of financial assets that would otherwise have been past due or impaired have 
been renegotiated, the Corporation recognises the impairment for such financial assets by taking 
into account the original terms as if the terms have not been renegotiated so that the loss events 
that have occurred are duly considered. 

 Derecognition 
 Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expire or 

the asset is transferred to another party whereby the entity no longer has any significant 
continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are 
derecognised where the related obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability, which is extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-
cash assets or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss. 

f. Impairment of Assets 
 At the end of each reporting period, the Corporation assesses whether there is any indication that 

an asset may be impaired. The assessment will consider both external and internal sources of 
information. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by 
comparing the recoverable amount of that asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less 
costs of disposal and its value in use, to the asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the asset’s 
carrying amount over its recoverable amount is immediately recognised in profit or loss. 

 Where the future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent upon the asset’s 
ability to generate net cash inflows and when the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its 
remaining future economic benefits, value in use is determined as the depreciated replacement 
cost of an asset. 

 Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset’s class, the entity 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the class of assets belong. 
Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is recognised against the 
revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss 
does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that class of asset. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT) 
g. Employee Provisions 
 Short term employee provisions 
 Provision is made for the Corporation’s obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short-term 

employee benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled 
wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees 
render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee benefits 
are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled. 
The Corporation’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick 
leave are recognised as part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial 
position. 
 

 Other long-term employee provisions 
 

 Provision is made for employees’ annual leave entitlements not expected to be settled wholly 
before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the 
related service. Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the 
expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate 
anticipated future wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures, and are 
discounted at rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on 
government bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the obligations. Any 
remeasurements of other long-term employee benefit obligations due to changes in assumptions 
are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the changes occur.   
 

 The Corporation’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current 
provisions in its statement of financial position, except where the corporation does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, 
in which case the obligations are presented as current provisions.   
 
Retirement benefit obligations 
 
Defined contribution superannuation benefits 
All employees of the Corporation receive defined contribution superannuation entitlements, for 
which the Corporation pays the fixed superannuation guarantee contribution (currently 9.5% of the 
employee’s average ordinary salary) to the employee’s superannuation fund of choice. All 
contributions in respect of the employee’s defined contribution entitlements are recognised as an 
expense when they become payable. The Corporation’s obligation with respect to employee’s 
defined contribution entitlements is limited to its obligation for any unpaid superannuation 
guarantee contributions at the end of the reporting period. All obligations for unpaid 
superannuation guarantee contributions are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to 
be paid when the obligation is settled and are presented as current liabilities in the Corporation’s 
statement of financial position. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT) 
h. Cash on Hand 
 Cash on hand includes cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term highly 

liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank 
overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial 
position. 

i. Accounts Receivable and Other Debtors 
 Accounts receivable and other debtors include amounts due from members as well as amounts 

receivable from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business.  Receivables 
expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as 
current assets.  All other receivables are classified as non-current assets. 

 Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. Refer to Note 1(e) for 
further discussion on the determination of impairment losses. 

j. Goods and Services Tax (GST) 
 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the 

amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). 

 Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The 
net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or 
payables in the statement of financial position. 

 Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from 
investing or financing activities, which are recoverable from or payable to the ATO, are presented 
as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers. 

k. Income Tax 
 No provision for income tax has been raised as the entity is exempt from income tax under Div 50 

of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

l. Provisions 
 Provisions are recognised when the entity has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past 

events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can 
be reliably measured. Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the amounts required 
to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period. 

m. Comparative Figures 
 Where required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform 

with changes in presentation for the current financial year. 

n. Accounts Payable and Other Payables 

 Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting 
period for goods and services received by the Corporation during the reporting period which 
remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid 
within 30 days of recognition of the liability. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT) 
  
o. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments  
 The Directors evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial statements based 

on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable 
expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both 
externally and within the Corporation. 

 Key estimates 
 Impairment 

 The Corporation assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions 
and events specific to the Corporation that may be indicative of impairment triggers. 
Key Judgements 
Provision for impairment of receivables 
The corporation assesses the recoverability of the outstanding receivables at the end of each 
reporting period, and where deemed necessary, raises a provision for doubtful debts. 

p. Economic Dependence 
 Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service (Aboriginal Corporation) is dependent on the Country 

Health South Australia Local Health Network Incorporated, Department of Health and Ageing and 
the Department for Families and Communities for grant funding to carry out its objectives and the 
provision of Aboriginal Health Services. At this date the Directors have no reason to believe that 
the above entities will not continue to support Ceduna Koonibba Health Service (Aboriginal 
Corporation). The future operations of the Corporation are dependent upon achieving operating 
surpluses and positive operating cash flows. 

q. New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods 

 An assessment of Accounting Standards issued by the AASB that are not yet mandatorily 
applicable and their potential impact on the corporation when adopted in future periods is 
discussed below: 

- AASB 9: Financial Instruments (December 2014) and associated Amending Standards 
(applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018). 
These Standards will be applicable retrospectively (subject to the provisions on hedge 
accounting outlined below) and include revised requirements for the classification and 
measurement of financial instruments, revised recognition and derecognition 
requirements for financial instruments, and simplified requirements for hedge accounting. 
The key changes that may affect the corporation on initial application of AASB 9 and 
associated Amending Standards include certain simplifications to the classification of 
financial assets, simplifications to the accounting of embedded derivatives, upfront 
accounting for expected credit loss and the irrevocable election to recognise gains and 
losses on investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading in other 
comprehensive income.  AASB 9 also introduces a new model for hedge accounting that 
will allow greater flexibility in the ability to hedge risk, particularly with respect to the 
hedging of non-financial items.  Should the Corporation elect to change its hedge 
accounting policies in line with the new hedge accounting requirements of AASB 9, the 
application of such accounting would be largely prospective. 
The directors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 9 will not have an impact on the 
Corporation’s financial statements. 

– AASB 16: Leases (applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2019).  
When effective, this Standard will replace the current accounting requirements applicable 
to leases in AASB 117: Leases and related Interpretations. AASB 16 introduces a single 
lessee accounting model that eliminates the requirement for leases to be classified as 
operating or finance leases. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT) 
q. New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods (cont) 
 The main changes introduced by the new Standard are as follows: 

- recognition of a right-of-use asset and liability for all leases (excluding short-term 
leases with less than 12 months of tenure and leases relating to low-value assets); 

- depreciation of right-of-use assets in line with AASB 116: Property, Plant and 
Equipment in profit or loss and unwinding of the liability in principal and interest 
components; 

- inclusion of variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate in the initial 
measurement of the lease liability using the index or rate at the commencement 
date; 

- application of a practical expedient to permit a lessee to elect not to separate non-
lease components and instead account for all components as a lease; and 

- inclusion of additional disclosure requirements. 
The transitional provisions of AASB 16 allow a lessee to either retrospectively apply the 
Standard to comparatives in line with AASB 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors or recognise the cumulative effect of retrospective 
application as an adjustment to opening equity on the date of initial application. 
Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 16 may have an impact on 
the Corporation’s leases, it is impracticable at this stage to provide a reasonable estimate 
of such impact. 

– AASB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (applicable to annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). 
This Standard is applicable to transactions that do not arise from enforceable contracts 
with customers involving performance obligations. 
The significant accounting requirements of AASB 1058 are as follows: 
- Income arising from an excess of the initial carrying amount of an asset over the 

related contributions by owners, increases in liabilities, decreases in assets and 
revenue should be immediately recognised in profit or loss. For this purpose, the 
assets, liabilities and revenue are to be measured in accordance with other 
applicable Standards. 

- Liabilities should be recognised for the excess of the initial carrying amount of a 
financial asset (received in a transfer to enable the entity to acquire or construct a 
recognisable non-financial asset that is to be controlled by the entity) over any 
related amounts recognised in accordance with the applicable Standards. The 
liabilities must be amortised to profit or loss as income when the entity satisfies its 
obligations under the transfer. 

An entity may elect to recognise volunteer services or a class of volunteer services as an 
accounting policy choice if the fair value of those services can be measured reliably, 
whether or not the services would have been purchased if they had not been donated. 
Recognised volunteer services should be measured at fair value and any excess over the 
related amounts (such as contributions by owners or revenue) immediately recognised as 
income in profit or loss. 
The transitional provisions of this Standard permit an entity to either: restate the contracts 
that existed in each prior period presented in accordance with AASB 108 (subject to 
certain practical expedients); or recognise the cumulative effect of retrospective 
application to incomplete contracts on the date of initial application. For this purpose, a 
completed contract is a contract or transaction for which the entity has recognised all of 
the income in accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions. 
Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 1058 may have an impact on 
the Corporation's financial statements, it is impracticable at this stage to provide a 
reasonable estimate of such impact. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 

 
NOTE 2: REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 
  2018 2017 
  $ $ 
Revenue    

Revenue from (non-reciprocal) government grants and other grants:    

– Commonwealth government grants – operating  4,458,534 3,489,379 

– State government grants – operating  3,111,412 2,994,861 

– Unexpended grant income from prior year  471,188 445,306 

 Total Grant Revenue  8,041,134 6,929,546 

Other Revenue:    

– Clinic Income - Medicare  450,973 271,834 

– Clinic Income - Other  142,534 140,218 

– Interest received on investments in government and fixed 
interest securities  

 
32,214 

 
29,953 

Total Other Revenue  625,721 442,005 

    

Other income    

– rental income   130,578 142,705 

– other   220,020 54,407 

Total Other Income  350,598 197,112  

Total Revenue and Other Income  9,017,453 7,568,663 
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NOTE 4: CASH ON HAND 
 Note 2018 2017 
  $ $ 
CURRENT    
Cash at bank – Operational  2,111,931 1,179,692 
Cash at bank – Clinic  786,278 839,509 
Term Deposit - OATSIH  180,649 176,574 
Term Deposit - DHA  47,900 46,826 
Term Deposit - DHS  94,916 92,775 
Term Deposit - Sundry  161,878 158,227 
Petty Cash  161 65 

Total cash on hand as stated in the statement of financial position 
and statement of cash flows 

15 
 

3,383,713 2,493,668 

 

NOTE 3: SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 
  2018 2017 
  $ $ 
a. Expenses    

 Bad and doubtful debts expense  - (315) 

 Employee benefits expense – contributions to defined 
  contribution superannuation funds 

  
411,374 

 
356,526 

     

 Assets Written Off  32,442 112 

   443,816 356,323 

 Rental expense on operating leases    

 – Minimum Lease Payments  94,709 90,826 

     

 Auditor’s fees:    

 – Audit Services  20,600 20,600 

 – Other Services  2,056 6,583 

 Total auditor’s remuneration  22,656 27,183 
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NOTE 5: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER DEBTORS 
 Note 2018 2017 
  $ $ 
CURRENT    

Accounts receivable  6,741 37,885 

Provision for impairment of receivables  - - 

  6,741 37,885 

Other debtors  - - 

Total current accounts receivable and other debtors 15  6,741 37,885 

 

(a) Provision for Impairment of Receivables 
 Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows: 

  2018 
$ 

2017 
$ 

 Opening Balance 1 July - 3,328 

 Charge for the year - (3,328) 

 Amounts written off - - 

 Closing balance 30 June - - 

 

(b) Credit Risk – Accounts Receivable and Other Debtors 
 The Corporation has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counterparty or group 

of counterparties other than those receivables specifically provided for and mentioned within Note 5. The main 
source of credit risk to the Corporation is considered to relate to the class of assets described as “accounts 
receivable and other debtors”. 

 The following table details the Corporation’s accounts receivable and other debtors exposed to credit risk (prior 
to collateral and other credit enhancements) with ageing analysis and impairment provided for thereon.  
Amounts are considered as “past due” when the debt has not been settled within the terms and conditions 
agreed between the Corporation and the customer or counterparty to the transaction. Receivables that are past 
due are assessed for impairment by ascertaining solvency of the debtors and are provided for where there are 
specific circumstances indicating that the debt may not be fully repaid to the Corporation. The balances of 
receivables that remain within initial trade terms (as detailed in the table below) are considered to be of high 
credit quality. 

  
Gross 

Amount 

Past Due 
and 

Impaired 

Past Due but Not Impaired 
(Days Overdue) 

Within 
Initial 
Trade 
Terms   < 30 31–60 61–90 > 90 

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

 2018        

 Accounts 
receivable 

6,741 - 159 861 - - 5,721 

 Other debtors - - - - - - - 

 Total 6,741 - 159 861 - - 5,721 

  
2017 

       

 Accounts 
receivable 

37,885 - 350 294 99 3,052 34,090 

 Other debtors - - - - - - - 

 Total 37,885 - 350 294 99 3,052 34,090 
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NOTE 6: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
    
Land and Buildings  2018 2017 

Freehold land at cost:  $ $ 

– 11 Christopher St  106,000 106,000 

– 2 George St  89,000 89,000 

Total land  195,000 195,000 

Buildings at cost:    

– 11 Christopher St  213,162 213,162 

– 2 George St  35,050 35,050 

   248,212 248,212 

Less accumulated depreciation  (52,020) (46,142) 

Total buildings      196,192 202,070 

Site Improvements at cost:    

– 11 Christopher St         134,533  9,833 

– Seaview Tce         175,962  120,462 

– Sobering Up Unit         411,021  411,021 

– Koonibba Clinic          52,023  12,332 

   773,539 553,648 

Less accumulated depreciation  (212,288) (164,688)  

Total Site improvements 
 

561,251 388,960 

Total land, buildings and site improvements 
 

952,443 786,030

    

Plant and Equipment     

Plant and equipment:    

At cost        731,431  877,482 

Less accumulated depreciation  (327,231) (547,695) 

  
404,200 329,787

Software:    

At cost         116,307  116,307 

Less accumulated depreciation  (97,391) (85,956) 

  
18,916 30,351

Motor vehicles:    

Capitalised vehicles        161,782  178,709 

Accumulated depreciation  (81,016) (73,943) 

  
80,766 104,766

Total plant and equipment  
503,882 464,904

Total property, plant and equipment  
1,456,325 1,250,934
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 NOTE 6: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT) 
 Movements in Carrying Amounts 

 Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of 
the current financial year: 
  

 
Land and 
Buildings 

Motor 
Vehicles 

Plant and 
Equipment 

 
Software Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ 
2017      

Balance at the beginning of the year 712,577 24,249 328,153 48,830 1,113,809 

Additions at cost 108,752 86,396 50,123 - 245,271 

Disposals - - (44) - (44) 

Reclassifications - - - - - 

Depreciation expense  (35,299) (5,879) (48,445) (18,479) (108,102) 

Carrying amount at the end of the year 786,030 104,766 329,787 30,351 1,250,934 

2018      

Balance at the beginning of the year  786,030 104,766 329,787 30,351 1,250,934 

Additions at cost  219,973 2,862 152,019 - 374,854 

Disposals - (1,171) (1,591) - (2,762) 

Assets written off - - (32,030) - (32,030) 

Reclassifications - - - - - 

Depreciation & amortisation expenses (53,560) (25,691) (43,985) (11,435) (134,671) 

Carrying amount at the end of the year 952,443 80,766 404,200 18,916 1,456,325 

      

 Encumbrance on Property 

 The property at 2 George Street is under Encumbrance number 9486704. The Encumbrance states that Ceduna 
Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service is unable to use the land or any part of the land at 2 George Street, without the prior 
written approval of the Minster of Health of Adelaide, for any purpose other than for the delivery of health services.  
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NOTE 7: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 Note 2018 2017 
  $ $ 
CURRENT    

Accounts payable  115,868 175,731
Un-expended Funds  1,047,463 616,168
GST Payable  138,449 73,127
Other current payables  141,460 101,233
Accruals  142,384 103,837
        1,585,624 1,070,096

    

a. Financial liabilities at amortised cost classified as trade 
and other payables  

   

 Accounts payable and other payables:    

 – total current   1,585,624 1,070,096 

 – total non-current  - - 

    1,585,624 1,070,096 

 Less deferred income  (1,047,463) (616,168) 

 Less other payables (net amount of GST payable)  (138,449) (73,127) 

 Financial liabilities as accounts payable and other payables 15 399,712 380,801 

 The average credit period on accounts payable and other payables (excluding GST payable) is 30 
Days.  No interest is payable on outstanding payables during this period. 
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NOTE 8: EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS  
 2018 2017 
 $ $ 
Analysis of Employee Provisions   

Current:   

– annual leave entitlements 207,573 167,252 

– long service leave entitlements 121,653 139,013 

Total current employee provisions  329,226 306,265 

Non-current:   

– long service leave entitlements 78,213 61,716 

 407,439 367,981 

 

  Employee 
Provisions 

Opening balance at 1 July 2017  367,981 

Additional provisions raised during year  378,903 

Amounts used  (339,445) 

Balance at 30 June 2018  407,439 

   

Employee Provisions 
Employee provisions represent amounts accrued for annual leave and long service leave. 

The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements and 
the amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having 
completed the required period of service. Based on past experience, the Corporation does not expect the 
full amount of annual leave or long service leave balances classified as current liabilities to be settled 
within the next 12 months. However, these amounts must be classified as current liabilities since the 
Corporation does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of these amounts in the event 
employees wish to use their leave entitlement. 

The non-current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that 
have not yet vested in relation to those employees who have not yet completed the required period of 
service. 
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NOTE 9: RESERVES 

 2018 2017 

  $ $ 
 Capital Reserve 1,014,390 760,285 

 Asset Replacement Reserve 70,228      70,228 

 Total Reserves 1,084,618 830,513 

    

CAPITAL RESERVE:   

 Opening balance 1 July 760,285 593,125 

 Transfers from (to) Retained Surplus 254,105 167,160 

 Closing balance 30 June 1,014,390 760,285 

    

ASSET REPLACEMENT RESERVE:   

 Opening balance 1 July 70,228 - 

 Transfers from (to) Retained Surplus - 70,228 

 Closing balance 30 June 70,228 70,228 

 Total Reserves 1,084,618 830,513 

    

a. Asset Replacement Reserve 
 The Corporation has implemented an Asset Management Plan whereby assets that are due for 

replacement are identified and an amount equal to their replacement value is transferred from 
retained earnings and carried forward in the Asset Replacement Reserve. 

b. Capital Reserve  
The Corporation has elected to treat the receipt and expenditure of Capital funds in the Income 
and Expenditure Statements, detailing any carryover of Capital Funds, as well as a description 
of the Assets purchased in the Statement of Financial Position, which corresponds with 
amounts carried forward in the Capital Reserves Account. 

 2018 2017 
  $ $ 
 Opening Balance 1 July 760,285 593,125 

 Capital Expenditure funding transferred to Reserves 374,854 245,650 

 Reserve Assets Disposed (25,745) (1,600) 

 Depreciation of Reserve (95,004) (76,890) 

 Closing Balance 30 June 1,014,390 760,285 

Comprising:    
 Federal State Clinic Sundry Total 
Balance at 1  
July 2017 451,902 546,763 61,318 32,814 1,092,797 
Additions 268,630 33,031 - 43,193 374,854 
Disposals (13,286) (12,459) - - (25,745) 
Balance at  
30 June 2018  707,246 567,335 61,318 76,007 1,411,906 
    Less: 

Accumulated 
Depreciation 

(427,516) 

    Total Capital 
Reserve 1,014,390 
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NOTE 10: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS 
  2018     2017 
  $     $ 
(a) Operating Lease Commitments    

 Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not 
capitalised in the financial statements  

   

 Payable – minimum lease payments:    

 – not later than 12 months  101,331 96,313 

 – later than 12 months but not later than five years  27,417 24,554 

 – later than five years  - - 

    128,748 120,867 

 The motor vehicle lease commitments are operating rental 
leases contracted predominantly for a two year term. No 
capital commitments exist in regards to the lease 
commitments at year-end.  

 

(b) Capital Expenditure Commitments  

 The Corporation had Nil capital expenditure commitments as at 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).  

 
 NOTE 11: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 
Estimates of the potential financial effect of contingent liabilities that may become payable: 

Claims: 

The Corporation is potentially involved in a legal dispute in relation to the following matter: 

1. Accounting Services: 
a. Prior to November 2011, a service provider performed financial and accounting services for the Corporation 

for several years. 
b. In mid-November 2011, the Board of the Corporation resolved to extend the service provider’s appointment 

for a five year period at a cost of $300,000 per year. 
c. The Corporation and the service provider then commenced negotiating terms for a written agreement to 

govern their relationship.   
d. In late December 2011, the Corporation provided a draft agreement to the service provider. 
e. In April 2012, the service provider responded seeking substantial amendments to the contract. 
f. These amendments were unacceptable to the Corporation and negotiations for a written agreement did not 

progress. 
g. In June 2012, the Corporation advised the service provider that it would insource a small proportion of the 

services provided by the service provider, namely the input of Technology 1 data.  There was no proposal to 
reduce the fee paid to the service provider. 

h. The service provider advised (through their lawyers) that they considered this to be a breach of their 
services contract and suspended performing work for the Corporation. 

i. The Corporation instructed Kelly & Co Lawyers to respond that no breach had occurred and that its 
suspension of services constituted a repudiation of the contract between them.  

j. Ultimately, the service provider refused to lift the suspension of their performance of services unless the 
Corporation would sign a written agreement with particular terms. 

k. The Corporation advised that it would not negotiate a written agreement under the threat of the service 
provider not recommencing its services unless it was satisfied with the terms.  The Corporation accepted the 
service provider’s repudiation and brought their engagement to an end. 

l. To date, no formal claim has been made by the service provider, though this may occur in the future. 
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NOTE 12: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

The Directors are not aware of any significant events since the end of the reporting period. 
 
NOTE 13: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

   2018 2017 

   $ $ 
a. Key Management Personnel    

 Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Corporation, 
directly or indirectly, including any member (whether 
executive or otherwise) is considered key management 
personnel. 

   

 Key management personnel compensation:    

 – short-term benefits  150,981 126,180 

 – post-employment benefits  14,210 11,714 

 – other long-term benefits   - 

 -- termination benefits   - 

    165,191 137,894 

     

   2018 2017 
b. Other Related Parties   $ $ 
 Other related parties include close family members of key 

management personnel, and entities that are controlled or 
jointly controlled by those key management personnel 
individually or collectively with their close family members. 

   

 Remuneration received or receivable by all directors of the 
Corporation and close family members: 

   

 – Consulting services   - - 

 – Reimbursements of expenditure  4,526 11,913 

 – Amounts paid to close family members of directors for 
salaries and wages 

 300,189 468,854 

Transactions between related parties and or their close family 
members, are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more 
favourable than those available to other persons unless otherwise 
stated. 
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NOTE 14: CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
  2018 2017 
  $ $ 
Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operating Activities with 
Current Year Operating Surplus 

   

Operating Surplus  509,306 342,639 

Non-cash flows:    

Depreciation and amortisation expense  134,671 108,102 

Assets written off  32,853 - 

Loss(Gain) on disposal of plant and equipment  (411) (68) 

Changes in assets and liabilities:    

(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable and other debtors  31,144 5,020 

Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and other payables  515,528 121,334 

Increase/(decrease) in employee provisions  39,458 40,655 

Cash flows provided by Operating Activities  1,262,549 617,794 
 

 
NOTE 15: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Corporation’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local money market 
instruments and receivables and payables. 

The carrying amounts for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 
as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows: 

 
 
 Note 2018 2017 
  $ $ 
Financial assets    

Cash on hand 4 3,383,713 2,493,668 

Accounts receivable and other debtors 5 6,741 37,885 

Total financial assets  3,390,454 2,531,553 

    

Financial liabilities    

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:    

– accounts payable and other payables 7 399,712 380,801 

Total financial liabilities  399,712 380,801 
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NOTE 15: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT)  
 
Financial Risk Management Policies 
The Board of Directors is responsible for monitoring and managing the Corporation’s compliance with its 
risk management strategy. The Directors overall risk management strategy is to assist the Corporation in 
meeting its financial targets while minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance. Risk 
management policies are approved and reviewed by the Directors on a regular basis. These include credit 
risk policies and future cash flow requirements. 
Specific Financial Risk Exposures and Management 
The main risks the Corporation is exposed to through its financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk 
and market risk relating to interest rate risk and other price risk. 

There have been no substantive changes in the types of risks the Corporation is exposed to, how these 
risks arise, or the Board’s objectives, policies and processes for managing or measuring the risks from the 
previous period. 

a. Credit risk 

 Exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non-performance by 
counterparties of contract obligations that could lead to a financial loss for the Corporation. 

 The Corporation does not have any material credit risk exposures as its major source of revenue 
is the receipt of grants. Credit risk is further mitigated as 100% of the grants received from 
Commonwealth, state and local governments are in accordance with funding agreements which 
ensure regular funding for a period on average of 2 years.  The Corporation remains confident that 
its significant funding agreements will continue to be renewed. 

 Credit risk exposures 

 The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at the end of the 
reporting period is equivalent to the carrying value and classification of those financial assets (net 
of any provisions) as presented in the statement of financial position. 

 Accounts receivable and other debtors that are neither past due nor impaired are considered to be 
of high credit quality.  Aggregates of such amounts are detailed at Note 5.   

 The Corporation has no significant concentrations of credit risk exposure to any single counterparty 
or group of counterparties. Details with respect to credit risk of accounts receivable and other 
debtors are provided in Note 5. 

 Credit risk related to balances with banks and other financial institutions is managed by the Finance 
Manager, CEO and the Board of Directors in accordance with approved board policy. Such policy 
requires that surplus funds are only invested with counterparties with a Standard & Poor’s rating of 
at least AA–.  The following table provides information regarding the credit risk relating to cash and 
money market securities based on Standard & Poor’s counterparty credit ratings. 

   
Note 

 
2018 

 
2017 

   $ $ 
 Cash on hand    

 – AA rated 4 3,383,713 2,493,668 
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NOTE 15: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT) 
b. Liquidity risk 
 Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Corporation might encounter difficulty in settling its debts 

or otherwise meeting its obligations in relation to financial liabilities.  The Corporation manages this risk 
through the following mechanisms: 

 – preparing forward-looking cash flow analysis in relation to its operational, investing and financing 
activities; 

 – maintaining a reputable credit profile; 

 – managing credit risk related to financial assets; 

 – only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions; and 

 – comparing the maturity profile of financial liabilities with the realisation profile of financial assets. 

 The table below reflects an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for non-derivative financial 
liabilities.  The Corporation does not hold directly any derivative financial liabilities. 

 Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management’s expectation as to the timing of 
realisation. Actual timing may therefore differ from that disclosed. The timing of cash flows presented in 
the table to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement dates. 

  

Financial liability and financial asset maturity analysis 

  
Within 1 Year 

 
1 to 5 Years 

 
Over 5 Years 

 
Total 

 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Financial liabilities due for 
payment 

        

Accounts payable and other 
payables 

(399,712) (380,801) - - - - (399,712) (380,801) 

Total expected outflows (399,712) (380,801) - - - - (399,712) (380,801) 

         

Financial assets – cash 
flows realisable 

        

Cash on hand 3,383,713 2,493,668 - - - - 3,383,713 2,493,668 

Accounts receivable and 
other debtors 

6,741 37,885 - - - - 6,741 37,885 

Total anticipated inflows  3,390,454 2,531,553 - - - - 3,390,454 2,531,553 

Net (outflow)/inflow on 
financial instruments 

2,990,742 2,150,752 - - - - 2,990,742 2,150,752 
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NOTE 15: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT) 
c. Market risk 
 (i) Interest rate risk 

  Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at 
the end of the reporting period whereby a future change in interest rates will affect future 
cash flows or the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments. The Corporation is also 
exposed to earnings volatility on floating rate instruments.  

  The financial instruments that expose the Corporation to interest rate risk are limited to lease 
liabilities, listed shares, government and fixed interest securities, and cash on hand. 

  The Corporation also manages interest rate risk by ensuring that, whenever possible, 
payables are paid within any pre-agreed credit terms.   
 

 (ii) Other price risk 

  Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from 
interest rate risk or currency risk) of securities held. 

  The Corporation is not exposed to other price risk on investments held for trading or for 
medium to longer terms.   

Sensitivity analysis 

The following table illustrates sensitivities to the Corporation’s exposures to changes in interest rates and 
equity prices. The table indicates the impact on how profit and equity values reported at the end of the 
reporting period would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that management 
considers to be reasonably possible. 

These sensitivities assume that the movement in a particular variable is independent of other variables 

   Profit Equity 

   $ $ 
Year ended 30 June 2018    

+/–  2% in interest rates  58,774 58,774 

+/–  2% in interest rates  (58,774) (58,774) 

Year ended 30 June 2017    

+/–  2% in interest rates  46,148 46,148 

+/–  2% in interest rates  (46,148) (46,148) 

No sensitivity analysis has been performed on foreign exchange risk as the Corporation has no material 
exposures to currency risk. 

There have been no changes in any of the assumptions used to prepare the above sensitivity analysis 
from the prior year. 
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NOTE 15: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT) 
Fair Values 

Fair value estimation 
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and can be 
compared to their carrying amounts as presented in the statement of financial position.  Fair value is the 
amount at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties 
in an arm’s length transaction. 

Fair value may be based on information that is estimated or subject to judgment, where changes in 
assumptions may have a material impact on the amounts estimated.  Areas of judgment and the 
assumptions have been detailed below.  Where possible, valuation information used to calculate fair 
values is extracted from the market, with more reliable information available from markets that are actively 
traded.  In this regard, fair values for listed securities are obtained from quoted market bid prices.  Where 
securities are unlisted and no market quotes are available, fair value is obtained using discounted cash 
flow analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants. 

 
  2018 2017 

 Note Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value Carrying 
Amount 

Fair 
Value 

  $ $ $ $ 
Financial assets      

Cash on hand (i) 3,383,713 3,383,713 2,493,668 2,493,668 

Accounts receivable and other debtors (i) 6,741 6,741 37,885 37,885 

Total financial assets:  3,390,454 3,390,454 2,531,553 2,531,553 

Financial liabilities      

Accounts payable and other payables (i) (399,712) (399,712) (380,801) (380,801) 

Total financial liabilities  (399,712) (399,712) (380,801) (380,801) 

 
The fair values disclosed in the above table have been determined based on the following methodologies: 

(i) Cash on hand, accounts receivable and other debtors, and accounts payable and other payables 
are short-term instruments in nature whose carrying amount is equivalent to fair value. Trade and 
other payables exclude amounts provided for annual leave, which is outside the scope of 
AASB 139. 

 

Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service Aboriginal Corporation  (CKAHSAC)78



Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service (Aboriginal Corporation) 
ABN 92 498 922 417 

  Page 38 of 42 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 
 

NOTE 16: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
Management controls the capital of the entity to ensure that adequate cash flows are generated to fund its 
mentoring programs and that returns from investments are maximised within tolerable risk parameters.  
The Board of Directors ensures that the overall risk management strategy is in line with this objective. 

Risk management policies are approved and reviewed by the Directors on a regular basis.  These include 
credit risk policies and future cash flow requirements.  

The entity’s capital consists of financial liabilities, supported by financial assets. 

Management effectively manages the entity’s capital by assessing the entity’s financial risks and 
responding to changes in these risks and in the market. These responses may include the consideration of 
debt levels. 

There have been no changes to the strategy adopted by the Directors to control the capital of the entity 
since the previous year 

The gearing ratios for the years ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017 are as follows: 
 
 Note 2018 2017 
  $ $ 
Current assets to current liabilities  177% 184% 

Total assets to total liabilities  243% 263% 

 
NOTE 17: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
 
The Corporation measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis after 
initial recognition 

– Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; and 

– freehold land and buildings. 

The Corporation does not subsequently measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis, or any 
assets or liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring basis. 

a. Fair Value Hierarchy 

 

AASB 13: Fair Value Measurement requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the 
fair value hierarchy, which categorises fair value measurements into one of three possible levels 
based on the lowest level that an input that is significant to the measurement can be categorised 
into as follows: 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

 

Measurements based on 
quoted prices (unadjusted) in 
active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that the 
entity can access at the 
measurement date. 

Measurements based on inputs 
other than quoted prices included 
in Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly 
or indirectly. 

Measurements based on 
unobservable inputs for the 
asset or liability. 

 

The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined 
using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent 
possible, the use of observable market data. If all significant inputs required to measure fair value 
are observable, the asset or liability is included in Level 2. If one or more significant inputs are not 
based on observable market data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3.  
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NOTE 17: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT) 
 
 Valuation techniques 

 

The Corporation selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant 
data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The 
valuation techniques selected by the Corporation are consistent with one or more of the following 
valuation approaches: 

 – Market approach: valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information 
generated by market transactions for identical or similar assets or liabilities. 

 
– Income approach: valuation techniques that convert estimated future cash flows or 

income and expenses into a single discounted present value. 

 – Cost approach: valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an 
asset at its current service capacity. 

 

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a 
valuation technique, the Corporation gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of 
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using 
market data (such as publicly available information on actual transactions) and reflect the 
assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or liability are 
considered observable, whereas inputs for which market data is not available and therefore are 
developed using the best information available about such assumptions are considered 
unobservable. 

 
The following tables provide the fair values of the Corporation’s assets and liabilities measured 
and recognised on a recurring basis after initial recognition and their categorisation within the fair 
value hierarchy: 

 
  30 June 2018 
 Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
   $ $ $ $ 
 Recurring fair value measurements   
 Non-financial assets      

 Freehold land (i) 6 - 195,000 - 195,000 

 Freehold buildings (i) 6 - 196,192 - 196,192 

 Total non-financial assets 
recognised at fair value  - 391,192 - 391,192 

       

       

 (i) The fair value measurement amounts of freehold land include residential properties in 
Ceduna, which are used for accommodation and office buildings which are used for 
administrative purposes.  
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NOTE 17: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT) 
 
  30 June 2017 
 Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
   $ $ $ $ 
 Recurring fair value measurements 

  
 Non-financial assets      

 Freehold land 6 - 195,000 - 195,000 

 Freehold buildings 6 - 202,070 - 202,070 

 Total non-financial assets 
recognised at fair value  - 397,070 - 397,070 

 There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for assets measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis during the reporting period (2017: No transfers). 
 

b. Valuation Techniques and Inputs Used to Measure Level 2 Fair Values 
 
 Description Fair Value at 30 

June 2018 Valuation Technique(s) Inputs Used 

  $   

 Non-financial assets    

 Freehold land 

195,000 

Market approach using recent 
observable market data for 
similar properties; income 
approach using discounted cash 
flow methodology 

Price per hectare; 
market borrowing rate 

 Freehold buildings 

196,192 

Market approach using recent 
observable market data for 
similar properties; income 
approach using discounted cash 
flow methodology 

Price per square 
metre; market 
borrowing rate 

  391,192   

 

 (i) The fair value of freehold land and buildings is determined at least every three years 
based on valuations by the valuer general. At the end of each intervening period, the 
directors review the independent valuation and, when appropriate, update the fair value 
measurement to reflect current market conditions using a range of valuation techniques, 
including recent observable market data and discounted cash flow methodologies.  

 There were no changes during the period in the valuation techniques used by the Corporation to 
determine Level 2 fair values.  
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NOTE 17: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT) 
c. Disclosed Fair Value Measurements 
 The following assets and liabilities are not measured at fair value in the statement of financial 

position, but their fair values are disclosed in the notes: 

 – accounts receivable and other debtors; and 

 – accounts payable and other payables. 

 The following table provides the level of the fair value hierarchy within which the disclosed fair 
value measurements are categorised in their entirety and a description of the valuation 
technique(s) and inputs used: 

 Description Note Fair Value Hierarchy 
Level Valuation Technique(s) Inputs Used 

 Assets     

 Accounts 
receivable and 
other debtors 

5, 15 3 Income approach using 
discounted cash flow 

methodology 

Market interest rates for 
similar assets 

 Liabilities     

 Accounts 
payable and 
other payables 

7, 15 3 Income approach using 
discounted cash flow 

methodology 

Market interest rates for 
similar liabilities 

  

 There has been no change in the valuation technique(s) used to calculate the fair values disclosed 
in the financial statements.  

 
 
NOTE 18: ENTITY DETAILS 
The registered office of the entity is: 

 Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service (Aboriginal Corporation) 

 1 Eyre Highway 

 CEDUNA SA 5690 

The principal place of business is: 

 Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service (Aboriginal Corporation) 

 1 Eyre Highway 

 CEDUNA SA 5690 

 
 

Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service Aboriginal Corporation  (CKAHSAC)82



AnnuAl RepoRt 2017 / 2018 83



Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.  
Nexia Edwards Marshall is an independent firm of Chartered Accountants. It is affiliated with, but independent from, Nexia 
Australia Pty Ltd, which is a member of Nexia International, a worldwide network of independent accounting and consulting 
firms. Neither Nexia International nor Nexia Australia Pty Ltd deliver services in its own name or otherwise. Nexia International 
Limited and the member firms of the Nexia International network (including those members which trade under a name which 
includes the word NEXIA) are not part of a worldwide partnership.  
The trademarks NEXIA INTERNATIONAL, NEXIA and the NEXIA logo are owned by Nexia International Limited and used 
under licence.

L3 153 Flinders Street 
Adelaide SA 5000     
GPO Box 2163 
Adelaide SA 5001 
p  +61 8 8139 1111    
w nexiaem.com.au

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 

(“the corporation”)

including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.

 ’

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section 

Board’s APES 110 

auditor’s report thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

’s

Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the financial report
 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

• 

• 

’s internal control.
• 

• s’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and 

’s ability to continue as a going concern.  
equired to draw attention in our auditor’s 

our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 

• 
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Ceduna Koonibba Aboriginal Health Service Aboriginal Corporation

Administration
Address: 1 Eyre Highway, Ceduna SA 5690  
Phone: (08) 8626 2500   Fax: (08) 8626 2560

Seaview Village 
Address: 103 Seaview Terrace, Thevenard SA 5690

Phone: (08) 8626 2590   Fax: (08) 8626 2592

Clinic 
Address: 1 Eyre Highway, Ceduna SA 5690
Phone: (08) 8626 2500   Fax: (08) 8626 2530

Sobering Up Unit 
Address: 3 Eyre Highway, Ceduna SA 5690 
Phone: (08) 8626 2580   Fax: (08) 8626 2583

Koonibba Outreach Clinic
Address: Mickey Free Lawrie Drive, Koonibba SA 5690 

Phone: (08) 8625 0002 

Scotdesco Outreach Clinic
Address: PMB 4, Ceduna SA 5690 

Phone: (08) 8625 6222

 Postal Address
(All Sites)

PO Box 314  Ceduna SA 5690




